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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LFEH

Board of Directors

Executive Directors
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Ms. Chow Ying Chi
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Mr. Liu Ningdong
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
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Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Audit Committee
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) BEMEE(EE)
Mr. Li Wel FREEE
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAREE
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FREREELE
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Central, Hong Kong KFARE8HE
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Australia and New Zealand Banking Group SEETIRIT &
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BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch EBEERBIT(EEST)
China Bohai Bank B8 ER1T
China Citic Bank International FEHRIT ()
China Construction Bank PR IRTT
China Merchants Bank R R1T
Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch EEBIT(EEDT)
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation BB LBESRTT
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EuaxppEReas —= s 03



Corporate Information (continued)

DNEAEH (&)

Investor and Media Relations Consultant

Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit 3312, 33rd Floor

China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Since its inception in 1991, VSTECS has always maintained a growth
momentum above the industry average, supported by the ongoing expansion
of its scope of business as well as target market, in the past 27 years. By
taking advantage of the opportunities brought by the big data boom in
the ever-changing technology sector, the results of the Group continued
to mount up to a historic high in 2018 with a turnover increase of 15%
to HK$62.5 billion and an increase in net profit of 3% to HK$741 million.
Among all the business segments, the segment of cloud and big data
analytics experienced the strongest growth with its turnover increased by
more than 54%.

With 27 years of endeavour in business development, product diversification
and service expansion, VSTECS has become the largest science and
technology product solution and supply chain service platform in the Asia-
Pacific region. Its distribution network spans nine countries, namely China,
Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos and

(06 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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the Philippines, and over 240 of its upstream partners are among Top
500 science & technology enterprises in the world. It also has more than
48,000 downstream business partners. The product offerings of VSTECS
are grouped into 12 main categories which are closely linked to the future
development of technology — cloud computing, mobile Internet, system
equipment, software,
storage, computer accessories, Internet-of-Things application, video game
console, drone and virtual reality.

information security, network infrastructure, data

Looking back to 2018, VSTECS pushed ahead with the enhancement of
the Group’s services from VSTECS Cloud and the information technology
(IT) service divisions of VSTECS in response to the increasing demand for
hardware and software services for big data analytics, cloud computing
and innovative technology.

VSTECS Cloud mainly offers integrated services, including consultation,
planning, operation, maintenance and training, to corporate clients for
establishing cross-cloud architecture platform. Its services also include
cloud Saas, backup for cloud disaster and data transfer between public and
private clouds, which are pinpointed by VSTECS Group as key corporate
services in development. During the period, VSTECS reached a strategic
cooperation with JD Cloud which aims to fully utilize the frontier technology,
including cloud computing, big data and artificial intelligence, to push ahead
with innovation in the industry.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EE J‘E *& ( lllE )

Based on the concept of Innovative Service 2.0, the IT services of VSTECS
comprise innovative service products from over 10,000 partners through
an integrated service and resource platform. Currently, more than 200,000
mega physical and virtual spare parts warehouses across the country have
been consolidated and over 1,000 certified engineers are engaging in the
development of the IT service markets for small and medium enterprises
in tier 4-6 cities.

Technology is constantly evolving and new products and technologies are
coming out every day, therefore, VSTECS proactively develops the strategic
layout of its new products by continuously expanding the product portfolio.
It comprises of a wide-ranging system established by Yitu which offers the
functions of medical consultation, electronic transaction, mechanical control
and facial recognition, covering industries across finance, healthcare and
education etc.; a machine learning software by Splunk; an information security
software by Kaspersky; a cross-cloud operating system by Mesosphere; and
a virtual reality application by zSpace which expands the home entertainment
and education markets.

For the expansion of its new businesses, VSTECS actively focuses on the
development of O20 businesses. The project kicks start at Singapore and
Indonesia, and subsequently extends to other countries in South East Asia.
In addition, VSTECS negotiated with a giant e-commerce supplier with regard
to a comprehensive cooperation in South East Asia, aiming at creating a
new innovative business model and integrating business resources through
consolidating branches in South East Asia. The Company has taken roots in
South East Asia for many years with abundant resources. In our cooperation
with those e-commerce suppliers whose provide platforms, the Company
offers product resources, business support and warehousing and logistics.

By taking advantage of the opportunities arising in the time of big data
and mobile Internet, VSTECS continues to expand the following platforms:

b
niee
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Distribution and supply chain services for corporations by VSTECS; supply
chain financing by VSTMC which has the Internet microcredit licence; one-
stop cloud data services by VSTECS Cloud; IT resource integration for small
and medium enterprises by the information service division of VSTECS;
digitalised and multi-model logistic services by VES Supply Chains; industry
merger and acquisition and investment by VSTAM.

Among the key business divisions in development, VES has set up 3 national
logistic centres, 5 regional distribution centres and 19 branch warehouses
in the country since its establishment. It offers nearly 4,000 delivery options
which guarantee local delivery within 1.5 to 3 hours and delivery to 767
counties and cities within 48 hours, with a fulfillment rate of over 96.5%.
Corporate clients can now enjoy one-stop and multi-model logistic services
for all types of products through the national network of VES.

VSTMC is one of the few companies having the Internet microcredit licence
to carry out money lending business across the country and was granted
approval for commencing supply chain financing business. It is expected
to realise low-risk and stable revenue by capitalising on the Group’s
downstream client resources in China, long track record of transactions and
established credit assessment system as well as the extensive experience
of VSTMC’s management in credit and factoring business for small and
medium enterprises in commercial banks.

Prospects

Relentless in its pursuit of breakthrough, VSTECS has integrated the supply
chain service platform for IT products in the Asia-Pacific region, thereby
gaining competitive edges to outrun its industry peers in terms of growth
rate. Synergy will be created between new business segments of the Group,
particularly the segments of cloud security, innovative information services
and supply chain financing. Together with the one-stop integration services
comprising the elements of technology, financial services and the Internet,
VSTECS will form a closed loop business model, which will allow VSTECS
to become a technology powerhouse in the era of big data.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEBREE(E)

Looking forward, VSTECS will go on a track of rapid advancement. The well-
established relationship with vendors, sizeable regional network, rigorous
internal workflow and competent management team will take the Group
to a new high. Despite the constant changes in the industry and the
challenging market environment, the Group will maintain robust growth.
Besides extending its reach to emerging markets in Southeast Asia, the
Group will increase its market share in countries such as China and those in
Southeast Asia, and spare no effort in providing more value-added services
SO as to boost its profitability.

| would like to thank our shareholders for their staunch support for the Group,
and would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to
all our staff for the due performance of their duties as well as their strong
devotion to their work. My heartfelt thanks also go to our Board members
and business partners for their trust and support. The Group is confident
of overcoming the challenges ahead and will strive to maximise returns for
the shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION
RERARERBL R

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base. The
Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and Laos. The main
businesses are (i) provision of information technology (“IT”) products; (ii)
provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure
design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services; and
(iii) provision of network security hardware and software required for big data
and cloud computing. Leading IT vendors such as HP, Apple, Seagate,
AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over 48,000 channel
partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have established,
through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging from individuals,
small and medium enterprises to large corporations and government entities
who have been serviced by our regional resellers over the past 27 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 48,000 resellers, comprising
retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These resellers not only
market a wide range of products but they also provide support and repair
services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

o Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
. Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
. Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHEEBAWR S

Business Review

The Group has recorded another record high in revenue. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$62,481,961,000
(2017: HK$54,543,084,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$2,810,267,000 (2017: HK$2,347,037,000). Operating
profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$1,143,276,000
(2017: HK$1,081,553,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$740,827,000 (2017: HK$716,441,000), this
includes exchange loss and other non-recurring expenses of approximately
HK$98,000,000. Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 was HK51.62 cents (2017: HK50.34 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the mobility digital devices segment increased
by 16.8% to HK$26,113,765,000, contributing 41.8% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the components products segment decreased by
14.8% to HK$11,286,966,000, contributing 18% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the cloud and big data analytics segment increased by 54.2%
to HK$16,279,457,000, contributing 26.1% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the network and data security segment increased by 5% to
HK$8,801,773,000 contributing 14.1% of the total Group revenue.
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Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in
the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year, revenue generated in
North Asia increased by 12% to HK$49,379,022,000, contributing 79% of
the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East Asia increased by 24%
to HK$13,102,939,000, contributing 21% of the total Group revenue. The
Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to provide
more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product lines
now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM,
Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most if not all other businesses.
The directors have established a policy to ensure that significant risks which
may adversely affect the Group’s performance and ability to deliver on its
strategies, as well as those which may present positive opportunities, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are shown
in note 3 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and
other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
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Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products will enable us to continue to drive growth
for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to increase market
shares as well as the range of products offered. This will enable the Group
to continue to focus on growth in all business segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand
our business into mobility devices and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EBENRR DN (E)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,508,060,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,981,047,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$7,781,412,000 (2017: approximately HK$6,642,560,000). The net debt
to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total assets, was 0.26 (2017: 0.23).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded total
assets of approximately HK$22,062,102,000 (2017: approximately
HK$18,860,891,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$17,341,076,000 (2017: approximately HK$15,775,273,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the
total current liabilities, was approximately 1.27 times as at 31 December
2018 (2017: approximately 1.20 times).

current

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$4,834,714,000 as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$5,046,722,000 as at 31 December 2018.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases and a building pledged against secured mortgage
loan as set out in notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 3,328 (2017: 3,344) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately HK$801,324,000 (2017: approximately
HK$676,626,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars
to its staff whenever necessary.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EERAFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 57, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr. Li is
also the director of VST Computers (H.K.) Limited
(“VST Computers”), a subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for the overall management and
strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of
China with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in
1983 and a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986. Mr. Li is
the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ZHOU Yibing, aged 55, appointed as an
Executive Director and the Company’s Deputy
Chairman in 2018. Mr. Zhou is responsible for the
overall business operation and development in
China region. Mr. Zhou graduated from University of
Science and Technology of China with a bachelor’s
degree of Precision Machinery and Instrumentation
in 1985, and then obtained a master’s degree of
Fluid Mechanics in 1989. Mr. Zhou has over 20
years of experience of corporate management and industry strategy in the
area of information technology service industry. Before joining our Group,
Mr. Zhou served as senior management of Lenovo Group and Digital China
Group. Mr. Zhou is now the executive chairman of ITSS branch of Chinese
Electronics Standardization Association.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 47, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the director
of VST Computers, a subsidiary of the Company. He
is responsible for the overall financial management
of the Group. Mr. Ong holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from University College London and a
Master Degree in Analysis, Design & Management
of Information Systems from the London School
of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Ms. CHOW Ying Chi, aged 50, is an Executive
Director and the Group Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Ms. Chow has been working with
the Group since 1996. Ms. Chow started working in
business development for the East and North China
region and was appointed as operation director of
the Company in 2002. Currently, Ms. Chow is the
director of VST Computers and ECS Technology
(China) Limited (“ECS China”), both are subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Chow is responsible for the overall business operations
and management of VST Computers, and operation review and management
of the development in ERP solution for ECS China. Ms. Chow holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honours) in International Business from the
University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 30, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012 and is currently the Vice
President — Channel Sales of VST Computers, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for sales and distribution in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University
of Chicago in the United States of America. Mr. Li
is also a CFA charterholder. He is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is
the son of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. LIU Ningdong, aged 44, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in 2018 and
currently is the chief executive officer of the Group
in China and is responsible for the overall strategic
deployment and business development goals in
China. Mr. Liu joined the Group in 2010. He once
served as general manager, vice president, president
of the company’s new business group, and chief
executive officer of China; he was responsible for the
company’s new business development, value-added business development,
and deployment and implementation of the company’s overall business
development goals. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the distribution
industry and has extensive experience in upstream and downstream channel
partners and suppliers. Mr. Liu holds a master’'s degree in computer
technology from Shandong University of Science and Technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPFAIMNEERE (E)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LIANG Xin, aged 47, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in December
2013. Mr. Liang graduated with a Bachelor Degree
from the Department of Statistics of the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in the People’s
Republic of China in 1992. Mr. Liang obtained a
Master Degree in Finance from the Xiamen University
in the PRC in 2005. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Liang
has held various positions in the PRC government
and the private sector. Mr. Liang has worked as a section officer in the
Division of Human Resources and Education of Fujian Provincial Department
of Finance. Mr. Liang has also worked as a section officer in &&= H{z
1% & A A (Fujian Huaxing Trust and Investment Company Limited). Mr.
Liang has worked as a head of general office in 7 % (Huaxing Securities
Company Limited) (“Huaxing Securities”) and has held the position of general
manager in the Research and Development Department, the Securities
Trading Department and the Investment Banking Department in Huaxing
Securities where he was responsible for the stock and futures trading and
investment banking businesses. Mr. Liang has participated in a number of
initial public offering, listing recommendation, reorganisation and acquisition
and distribution work in the PRC. Since June 2004, Mr. Liang has served
as head of investment department, secretary of the board of directors, and
vice president in Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd. (
YT T At FESE AL D A BR A 7)), the issued shares of which are listed in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 64, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is now an independent non-executive director of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Qianhai Health Holdings Limited,
the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 55, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
ﬂ Certified Accountants and an associate member of

the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 30 years
of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an

independent non-executive director of China Environmental Technology
and Bioenergy Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Audit
Committee and members of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERDPFAIMNEERE (E)

Mr. HUNG Wai Man, JP, aged 50, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in May 2016. Mr. Hung is the Executive Chairman
of Chinese Big Data Society, Academic Committee
Member of PanGoal Institution and Principal Liaison
Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai Authority.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel
investor. He has worked in the computer industry for
almost 30 years. A well-known figure in the industry,
Mr. Hung has extensive experience in management consulting, project
management and outsourcing services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information
Technology Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer Society and the
Internet Professional Association. He has been appointed as the Director
and the eminent expert representing Hong Kong and China by the World
Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently the President Emeritus of Internet Professional
Association, Vice Chairman of China Overseas Friendship Association’s
Youth Committee, Member of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Member of the Chinese Association of Hong
Kong and Macau Studies, Vice President of Guangdong’s Association For
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao,
Commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol, Chairman Emeritus of
the Y.Elites Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte Jade Science and
Technology Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General of Hong Kong-
ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation and Council Member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association etc. In 2012 to
2014, he had served as an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of
the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was the 11th Standing
Member of the All China Youth Federation. In 2015, he was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was
given the Asia Social Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia.

Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher
Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He then obtained a BA (Hons)
from the University of Bolton, MBA from the University of Hull and MA in
Public and Comparative History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a LLM from the Renmin University of China and PhD in
Business Administration from Bulacan State University, the Philippines and
is currently pursuing his LLD study with the Renmin University of China.

Mr. Hung currently is an independent non-executive director of LH Group
Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited and Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited, all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Hung also serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 63, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.

ﬁ . From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National

Economic System Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research
Office, later he was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to
1994, he acted as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-
Tech Industry Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed
to many important positions, such as director, deputy general manager of
Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager
and chairman of board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited,
board director and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company
Limited, and the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment
Company Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice
president of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present,
Mr. Wang acts as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust
and Investment Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing
International Trust Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 38, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

B HERELIHRSE

This Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, which covers the overall performance, policies and practices
of the Group’s business and operations in terms of its environmental and
social responsibilities, for the year ended 31 December 2018. The ESG
Report mainly focuses on the aspects that have identified as material and
relevant to the Group’s business and its key stakeholders.

As a leading distributor of Information, Communication and Technology
(“ICT”) products in Asia, we strive to maximize the long-term benefits
of all our stakeholders by continuously communicating with them and
effectively balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to
achieve sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders
include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, environment and
community, etc.

A. Environmental Protection

The Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of sustainable
environmental development in promoting sustainability in its operations.
The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment.

Emissions

As our business is mainly trading in nature, the operations of our Group
does not have significant impacts on air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group is minimal. The most common emissions
from our daily business activities are mainly generated from the offices
and warehouses consumption of electricity and the Group does not
produce any hazardous waste in its operations. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance issues related to
the environmental laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Use of Resources

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while
endeavours to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent
the unnecessary waste of resources and minimize the impacts on
the environment and natural resources. Due to the nature of our
business, the resources used by the Group are principally attributed
to electricity and paper consumed at our offices and warehouses.
Due to our business nature, our operation does not involve direct
consumption of water and packaging materials. Water consumption
by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the Group’s
offices and warehouse only.

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses and
we do not involve large electric facilities for operation. In view of
that, we consider electricity consumption attributed to less significant
to our Group. However, the Group continues its commitment in
reducing the energy consumption by reminding employees to switch
off their computers before leaving office, switch off the lighting in
the conference rooms and other functional rooms when they are not
in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy-saving mode
whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep the
office temperature at 25°C so as to ensure the efficient use of the
air-conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for
daily office use as well as some printing materials such as annual/
interim reports and circulars which are required to be distributed to
the shareholders. To save the environment, the Group continues
the efforts in reducing and recycling of paper usage, by reminding
our staff to have environmentally friendly printing and photocopying
habit, encouraging double-sided printing and scanning documents
to the Company'’s server system rather than photocopying whenever
possible, implementing password system for colour printing and
separate collection of waste paper and used envelopes for reuse
and recycling. For those printing materials, we will not over-printing
and will print on demand and encourage our readers make use of
the company’s website.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact
and use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our
Group is endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources
as a responsible corporate citizenship.

Social

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous
community atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote
long-term corporate benefit. Through the areas on our employment
and labour practices, operational practices and social involvement,
we establish a mutually beneficial relationship with our internal and
external stakeholders.

Employment

The Group believes that employees are the most important
and valuable assets contributing to the key of success
and sustainable growth of the Company as a whole. The
Group strictly complies with all the relevant labour laws
and regulations under respective jurisdictions. The Group
treats all the employees equally that their employment,
remuneration, promotion or dismissal will not be affected
by their social identities such as race, nationality, gender,
religion, age and marital status.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis based on
individual performance and the market situation. Employees are also
entitled to discretionary bonus, share options and Company’s shares
to recognize their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual performance. Other benefits
include medical insurance, paid and maternity leaves and retirement
scheme are also provided.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-
compliance with the relevant employment laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Health and Safety

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group
is committed to maintain a safe and healthy working environment
and offer occupational safety training to employees. The Group also
provides guidelines to staff in warehouses in order to raise awareness
on occupational safety and health. For example, warning notice is
placed around the warehouse for reminding the employees the careful
operation of electric reach trucks. During the year under review,
the Group did not have any work related fatality case or any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organizes annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness
amongst the employees and enhance their sense of belonging. Also,
in order to have a better work-life balance between the employees,
overtime working is not encouraged unless it is necessary. Employees
are encouraged to participate in other activities such as sports or other
interest courses to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

Development and Training

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing the success of the Group. The Group provides
on-the-job and internal training to different levels of staff. Employees
are also highly encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that related to their job nature to enrich their knowledge
in discharging their duties. Our training covers products knowledge,
sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management skills,
leadership and management skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the relevant rules and regulations
in relevant jurisdictions relating to child and forced labour. The
Group prohibits the employment of child and forced labour in any
of our operations. All the employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

Every potential job applicant is required to complete the employment
application form, which will be checked and reviewed by the Human
Resource Department to ensure the information provided is accurate.
During the year under review, the Group did not have an issues relating
to child or forced labour or any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

As aleading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms
a very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient
supply chain management system that strengthen the role of different
parties between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure
high quality of services and products are delivered to our customers.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to name
a few. Majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and regulations
in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply with
relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard.
The Group emphasizes on the relationship and communications with
the suppliers to promote sustainable development. The Group has
strict selection process on its suppliers taking into considerations
such elements as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality
and recall policy, market conditions and customers’ preference. The
Group will communicate with the suppliers and distributors regularly
to maintain a good relationship with them and review and monitor
the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback to them from
time to time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Product Responsibility

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the
Group carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. The Group
will review the specifications of each product provided by the suppliers
before launching to our customers to ensure that each product
provided to customers are up to their standards and requirements.

As a comprehensive distributor, we not only endeavour to provide high
quality products to our customers, but also wide range of value-added
services to our suppliers and customers. We provide product return
and exchange procedures for our customers and we will report and
provide feedback on any complaints about the quality of the products
to our suppliers for their further review and improvement.

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy
of every customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in
highly confidential any information obtained in connection with their
employment, such as client information and supplier information.

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of
intellectual property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to
sell its products, we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and
conditions on the sale of the products and a distributor agreement
will be signed by both parties to ensure that the Group has the right
and authority to sell the products on behalf of the suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout
its operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable.
The Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There
are anti-corruption and anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the
employees. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - HERERRSE(E)

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance
issue and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance
of integrity and honesty as the Group’s core value. The Group has
stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our
business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the
Group’s Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly
joined employees are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook
and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-corruption training. All
employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every
year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business
partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anti-
corruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels
for employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action.
All the information collected and received will be kept confidential and
the Group’s internal audit department will conduct internal investigation
and report to senior management.

Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting
and engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve
a harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and
the community.

The Group has great focus on education and development of young
people in supporting the community. During the year under review, the
Group continued to work with Graduate School of Shenzhen Tsinghua
University to set up a technology and innovation research centre to
support the technology development in China. At the same time, the
Group can attract potential employees from students graduate from
the research centre to increase the competitiveness of the Group.
The Group also made donation to Tsinghua Alumni Association of
Hong Kong and Tsinghua University Education Foundation to support
the long-term education development in both Hong Kong and China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for
some code provisions which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of
its business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eleven members, consisting of six Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE(E)

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Yibing (Deputy Chairman) (Appointed on 30 May 2018)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Liu Ningdong (Appointed on 30 May 2018)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of enhancing
Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving better
performance of the Company. In designing the board composition, board
diversity can be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional skills, industry experience and knowledge and length of service.
In considering these perspectives on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy
into account in relation to the appointment of Mr. Zhou Yibing and Mr. Liu
Ningdong as the Executive Directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve better
performance of the Company.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRS (K)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended

31 December 2018 is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE(E)

EEREH
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Directors BE=E HEBITERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMEE 4/4
Mr. Zhou Yibing (Appointed on 30 May 2018) BA—E&4E (RZZE-—N\FRA=THEZE) 2/2
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam FETEE 4/4
Ms. Chow Ying Chi FRET LT 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FIREAE 4/4
Mr. Liu Ningdong (Appointed on 30 May 2018) RERLE (RZE-—N\FRA=THEZME) 2/2
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau (Retired on 30 May 2018) BgMEE (RZE—NFRA=THRME) 2/2
Mr. Yao Jie (Resigned on 19 April 2018) R E (RZE—N\FEATIHET) 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Liang Xin RRFEE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAEHITES
Mr. Li Wei TENE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi BBt AE 4/4
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREE 4/4
Mr. Wang Xiaolong TERESL A 4/4

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when necessary,
other committee meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr.
Liang Xin, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Xiaolong, were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2018 due to other
important engagements. All other directors had attend the 2018 annual
general meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.

36 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

ARRZITBEH  BREVHRER AW
EhRedbEMEEHEFeeAL(WER
E)EMZESEH  UBLARRZEBKBH
B -HHRRGFEE  EHEH  BEEAR
REMEBERTHEHELR -

MEEEE AN EEER IR LEA
ARIWERT SRLCBEREA-—RRE
REFRZ2AEBRBAAREZTEHRRELE
RoMmERTAHRESSER -

BRATEZEER  FPRIBRRAES
NAEFRZEMNEARZHEHEEFENEN
AHZEFS SR LEZRREE - ARAZ
MBERARTHAGRX  BREFNL
FEESEETMBEARETHREERNERZ
RPZEHRLEMERRE  AFABHAAEG
FOEEABA -

BRERRE

RIESFAEXAG.7  BYIFRITESNIEH
TEEREIFEREAE  HBRENELAR
R THR - ZEMEE - BMEE - ZEEL
AR TEREREAEREMEEABEM AL L E
ARNAR-ZZE—NERA=ZF+TBHRTZERE
BFEAXg FEHMWEEEHRE T —N\F
ERRBFARS  LBEREAERBEIRREZE
ﬁJ °

FRERITHAR

SFRMESCA2 VIRETER » £ B ETHRAN A
BEEED  LTTEH - ARKRE - T/F
HITBREERZEBE 29 TRIFREREILIA
EMIIH -

ARRRBZEIERTHRAE ST EME
£ -BEFEEHE BERRTRARZASG
FERA-ATERTARAEFTEEEEL
BN RERFE  ARBUERESAE
AR BB BB N B A B AT RHETTIRE - B
EREHETEIUNZEZELARAEEL
BEAREE -



Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
proposed to be re-elected.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

(d) To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2018 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control systems
and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set

BERKEHEEZZESGHR ZBERET W

out below: T
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HE S BITEERE
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) ERBREFR) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei TEEE 2/9
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREE 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong TR E 2/

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2018 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market
level of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed
to be made.

A() VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018

EENERZESEIEREM ZTE -
RIE BEXRBEITEALEBERL DU °

EREZEQLEHNARABE_T-N\F+
“RA=tT-BUFEZFEES -

TMWEES

FHNZBRE T EZEREBRANARRIZEE
ELEREEBZFMBENAER  BRT
ERMAZAREZRFHEFHERRAES
SRHERES AEEEEMIICXAEN
REBBA RS EEREZHMT R 3@
MR TEEFRSAREBEZHHGTERNES
SRHERRZ  HIFRATEFZFMHAE
FERHEBESE B RELEKRILEBER
B MELARELBERE  ULKBERHESE
FREEABBASEREERNG 2 HM

HEZ w2 B E R RN AR R Ak K
R ER -

RBE-Z-N\F+-A=+—ALFE -

FHMZESELRIT-AgHE  UBRF@ES

LREBRERBZHFMETEETEARE + (b)F M
Bz EE  AER  THELRBREMS LA

RLBMEZHFIRFS  UFEREEE
(EERE -



The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee
meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBTEERH

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) TIEFE(FE) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAERKE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FBERERE 1/1

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended 31
December 2018 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:

REZEEH - BRTEFHEIFEROA
BIUFRTESHMEKE - HERIKEHFER
HAEREBEEHRIBERAEINMT ¢

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBTEERH

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) BEMTE(ER) 1/1
Mr. Li Wei TERAE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man HRRSTE 1/1
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FHERES L 1/1

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$5,084,000 and HK$1,319,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of
the Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control framework,
covering all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The risk management and internal control framework also provides
for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.
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Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of information technology (“IT”) products,
provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure
design and implementation, training, maintenance and support services, as
well as the provision of network security hardware and software required
for big data and cloud computing.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 10 and
pages 12 to 17 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 12 to 17 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social
and Governance Report are set out on pages 24 to 30 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 31 to 46 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 180 of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2018 represented
approximately 8% (2017: approximately 8%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for approximately
22% (2017 approximately 24%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2018
represented approximately 17.2% (2017: approximately 18.9%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 60% (2017: approximately 62%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2018.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 71.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of HK15.2 cents per ordinary share (2017:
HK14.7 cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit.
When recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business
conditions and strategies, capital requirement for future development and
any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to time.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 73 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
which include share premium, capital reserve and retained earnings,
amounted to approximately HK$501,968,000 (2017: approximately
HK$745,525,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles

of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 180.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company repurchased
6,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by
the Company are as follows:

No. of shares

Highest price

BE  HEIEERZS
KBZE=T—\F+-A=+—HLFE

REREEZPTHEE 6,900,000 A 2 B & 38
B o RBELZBRMEWEHE - ﬁ%%$/“ﬂﬁ%@
Bt 2 FEWT

Lowest price Aggregate price

Month of repurchase repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) paid (HK$)
BEZAH BERAHE SRESE(ERT) SREERE(ER) SHEEEKGER)
April 2018 406,000 3.86 3.84 1,564,000
—\FHNA
July 2018 274,000 3.80 3.80 1,041,000
—\FtAH
September 2018 628,000 3.74 3.73 2,345,000
—ZE-N\FhA
October 2018 2,254,000 3.82 3.61 8,523,000
—NE+A
November 2018 630,000 3.80 3.78 2,387,000
—NEF+—A
December 2018 2,708,000 3.80 3.63 10,047,000
—N\F+=A
6,900,000 25,907,000
The Board believes that such repurchase of shares wil lead to anenhancement EEF&HE - AHEKONBEE KRS A A A

of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per share.

Apart from the above, the Company also acquired, through a trust setup
specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a total of 4,222,000
ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018 from the open market at a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$15,838,000. These shares would be used primarily for providing
employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition
of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Yibing (Deputy Chairman)

(Appointed on 30 May 2018)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Ms. Chow Ying Chi

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Liu Ningdong

(Appointed on 30 May 2018)

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau (Retired on 30 May 2018)

Mr. Yao Jie (Resigned on 19 April 2018)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liang Xin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Mr. Hung Wai Man
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non- executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2018 or at any time during the
year under review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out
on pages 18 to 23.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and =
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and {3 ~ fHE8 ik 7 & & & &
Debentures mRRE

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors 7
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or &
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within ~ (FE#& R#EF L HE KM (FBEEHIE715)
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter ([ &% R EAG 5 HI 1) BXVE) 2 & H ~ HH
571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified MM K ERBEFEERBEES LB E KO 2
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of XV 7 k85 &AM & AN 1A &) KBt A2 Fr 2 #
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they @ KA B (BEREFREZFFRPEKRNZE
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or EX W E RSB BB 2 =R KR ) -

required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuantto &Sk BT AKX A AR EFE H R E &0 £
Section 352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company 35218 1F E 2 Bl 2 @ KX B - iR &

= A
BESTBRABRARRHKELMBE LS

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows: THRANEME AR R A R Eam ROk
BT
Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEARNB RO REBERD 2ER

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BEEBRK EARAREET
EEnA 8% 14 HEROGEE REAZBHAEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 70,917,200 4.85%
FEMEE R BEmEAA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.31%
S~ corporation (Note 1)
ZEE R (KteEt1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 13.99%
R ENiY 5 (Note 2)
(Ktet2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 553,600 0.04%
TEMTE A BEmEAA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
TFE EnlEEA 17 B A b
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

RARQB RO RHEBERD 2 ERE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Long/Short ordinary shares or capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity underlying shares held Company
BHESERSN HAEABRE BT
EEnE ®%RE 54 HEROHEE REAzBIEIL
Ms. Chow Ying Chi Long Beneficial owner 1,056,000 0.07%
MEZE+ wHaE EnEAA
Long Beneficial owner 1,440,000 Share options 0.10%
e E=AA 1) i R
Mr. Liu Ningdong Long Beneficial owner 326,000 0.02%
A=R LA HaE BEREAA
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 240,000 Share options 0.02%
FREE e E=AA mEENRE
Notes: Hiat -
1, 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire ~ 1- A A2 311,228,000 % & % L &/l_—
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Limited# & » ML & L Limited & #f 2 317
Ms. Liu Li. BRABFEMRLTERERBEN LT HER
5 o
2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of  2- ARFZ204,309,600 At B FEME L
Mr. Li Jialin. ZEBAFZLTFE ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:
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R-_ZE-NF+_A=+—8 BHEZH
Mo UATATRARRZBG KR,k B
MHRHEERIEESRAEEAEXVIBE2RS
DEZIGEXBEART KB E S
K/SRAR - KRB RARDRIRIEES
REEGAIEI6hFEZE M ziEm R,/
gKE - RSERMAEITEEMBR FRAE
EEAMNEMKEARZBRERE ERRZ
BNz ARNENRATEEHERBRE
5%z A E iR

Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
FEEZBREN BMAORE
EEpA BRE 3% HERDHE Aotk
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 70,917,200 4.85%
FEMEE HE EnlEEA

Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.31%

e corporation (Note 1)

R EE R (Btet1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 13.99%

TR ENY 5 (Note 2)

(Ktzt2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 13.99%

B+ TR BEnEEA

Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.31%

S=Y corporation (Note 1)

ZEEEER (BieE1)
Long Family interest 70,917,200 4.85%

HE RicE= (Note 3)

(B15£3)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying REEE
S3Z N TV~ .
Shares and Debentures (ontinueq) mRRE )
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BEEBR: BORE
EEpA 587 54 HEROEHE B
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.31%
e ERERA (Note 4)
(Ktata)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.27%
e (E8)BRAA e E=AA (Note 5)
(K15£5)
I e TR pE g Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.27%
& B R A A e corporation (Note 6)
ZEE R (Ki7#6)
YRR mIgE Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.27%
ERBRA A IS=Y corporation (Note 7)
R EEE R (Ktat7)
Mr. Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.27%
AR 5 A& e corporation (Note 7)
R EE R (Ki7E7)
AR O SRTT Long Security interest in shares 252,211,998 17.27%
HE A& AR AR 2 (Note 8)
(Hiits)
BRINEEEF Long Interest of a controlled 252,211,998 17.27%
S~y corporation (Note 8)
R EE R (Hats)
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 145,576,300 9.97%
FE EnEEA
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Shares and Debentures (continued) mRRE @)
Number of Approximate
Long/Short ordinary shares or percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity underlying shares held shareholding
BESERR BARE
EENR ®%R 514 HERGHE il
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled 166,114,038 11.37%
e corporation
Y EE R
Ntasian Discovery Long Beneficial owner 129,508,000 8.87%
Master Fund e EnEAA
Mutual Funds Elite Long Custodian corporation 76,174,400 5.22%
S HEAT
Notes: B s
1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. RN A 2Z2311,228,000 I B L & L
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Limited# & - ﬁﬁL & L LimitedZ ZpE #17
Ms. Liu Li. Héﬁaa EMEEREEBEF L TSR
2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of 2. KA TZ204,309,600/ A% 17 B B (E MR 5 4
Mr. Li Jialin. CEBARNLLES o
3. 70,917,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of 3, KAAE 270,917,200 &1 B T EMKE 4
Ms. Liu Li. CEBANLLES
4., The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin 4. L & L Limitedz & Zp 2 277 A% AN By = (EHK
and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li. EERERBIAFNMLTHERE -
5. The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by #3Il 5. Bt 18 ( %-i r% JERAR 2 HEFITRAR
s Rm M EER D AR AL YT 15 I8 i %%ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁ °
6. 36.72% of the shares of /3 ﬁl\m 1R En B EEAR (D BR AR are held by Il 6. FY TR RAMEREROGER AT 2
TeRBREERERA 36.72% M ARV TR EBEIREZERER
RRAFEE -
7. 100% of the shares of &Y AR AR EIER AR A are held by Mr. Zhou 7. RYITeRERERERE Al 2 100% &
Guohui. DEHEBBLEAERFE -
8. 89.26% of the shares of A E# i M 81T are held by BEIRINEE . 8. R R A ER1T289.26% /% 15 F B R HNE
EEREA -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so faris knowntothe [ FwFi#EEIN  R_ZE—NF+_-_A=

Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares 4+ —§g . st & FFr 4 - ﬁﬁ}\imm =i
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosedto &y & S EEBRH T HEEGRIEBZE L Hﬁ =
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions (& | XV EF E2 & 39 2 7 (& X B [ 4 A

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register BB EEZ R AR )}g/jz//\ pg
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or A AR A GIIBEZE A R EEIEH E336EFE
was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of &M EEZR KKk E - B LAK AT
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at  7E{F g R TA XN EBEFMEMKE AT 2
general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in R k@ FRSRZEF 2T @ERFATH
respect of such capital. BRI FES% A E 2 A W

PO 2 AT fr] HAHE
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgmE(E)

Share Options B e A

Share option scheme of the Company ARpAE 2 ERES &

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the R_ZZ_FWA++tHERMNZARABER
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option #EFFE([EF S DEER - AR AR ZE
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing — A& /N A =+ = B IR A — B 3 E R 5 2
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the ([ #T&t&l]) - EER G E R L2 EERAXE
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted {EHZ ERIIZEHMEI M E 2 - REIEFEEH
under the New Scheme. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in MR EFTH SR B A M ERE - Bt 8l 2 &
note 14 to the financial statements. —HEBEHN M B REME14 -

During the year under review, no share options have been lapsed or cancelled 7 [B1 8 4F [ #f £ (£ o] B8 IR E R R E 5 &l K &
under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options movement under the ¢t 8H - EFtEI THEREL S ZFFBHOT ¢
Old Scheme are as follows:

As at Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price per
Name or category of participant Date of offer 2018 the year the year 2018 share (HKS) Exercise period
R=2-N% R=2-N% SRRE
SRENRART) sl -A-H RERTE RERER  TZA=1-H (Bx) s
Directors
gz
Mr. Li Jialin 23/08/2011 1,800,000 (1,800,000) - - 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
FEMAE
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 23/03/2011 1,440,000 - - 1,440,000 2.028 23/03/2013-22/08/2021
TEfrs
Ms. Chow Ying Chi 17/02/2011 1,440,000 - - 1,440,000 2207 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
CES S
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau (Note) 28/08/2011 700,000 (700,000) - - 2.028 28/08/2013-22/03/2021
REEEm)
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 240,000 - - 240,000 2028 23/03/2013-22/03/2021
Nyt
Sub-total /3f: 5,620,000 (2,500,000) - 3,120,000
Employees 17/02/2011 4,320,000 (2,400,000) - 1,920,000 2201 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
&8
Total #5: 9,940,000 (4,900,000) - 5,040,000
Note:  Mr. Chan Hoi Chau retired as director on 30 May 2018. et - g/,ﬂ{i\lﬁ% ERZZE-)/\FRA=+tHRHAE=E
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 30 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgmE(E)

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is
less than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements
were entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
69 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

BIAZBEERS

BEAEAEZEZRERATAIMCKREN
BB E
(RESBSHMETHERAA])

=
=

RZEA (A TEHBIRMDEBRAINEARE
BOE17TOBEMBMEERERBER AR (AT
Bl ERADEREWNBAG(ATHE =&
EEDNRATHRE  WHBHREREER
TE-NFEFT+_A=ZTHOGEATEMRR
FEHEZZBEFENRABER  GREHE
MEERAR  SGAEZBIHREIFNEEAR
EHREWRE  URKEWBHHREMT - 24
FTEQHHEME -

BMRA  ZEHEAVERECREET LS
SR ng ([ EASMAE ) BMAKEEY
BHREE) ([BEVBRELERDEEMS
Bk T BEXEER_Z-NEF+_A=+
—HONEAFBRARBEZA LFEOER
EUBERANGAEEENE  TEEREE
(RRAMGPDHREERZ SR -

RRNER

BPEREBEBZEGMASREMNO(EREE
ERDETER RAEKXFEATAENE
ECERRE KA F T 47 6 B B &K A
EHEME IR PEE-—TBL - RIEFE
GBI A G BEMACEE S ADEZTFA) (A
TEBEITADARHASESRERMAHEAR
BHREANEFHEANBREER  RABLR
BB YCETELBERERUAR TS
MEMBEXBEAEMT - RIAEE - RAME
BHEAFEREEACLEEHLARMOER
REER -

EHaxppERas —=- a8 61



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEEMRE (F)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FARESNEE

MR FHEIRE R I T X HE

 RARBAHEEMBRERNEBAZAZTENSTE - GEERARERMEBTER

REMBHRAREABARBETREN - RATSHELERRERAEBNER -

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 105.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted to
HK$6,103,030,000 (approximately 28% of the Group’s current
assets) as at 31 December 2018.

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and their net
realisable value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and the future
expenses necessary to make the sales. Future demand and
selling prices of technology products are highly susceptible
to factors such as industry standards, technological changes
and customer preferences, which are constantly changing and
could change very rapidly.

Determining provisions for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because any write-down or provisions may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements and because
the estimation of the net realisable values involves the exercise
of significant management judgement which can be inherently
uncertain.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls over the inventory write-down and
provision assessment process, including the Group’s
monitoring controls over slow-moving inventories;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with relevant purchase records, including purchase
invoices and goods receipt notes;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

° evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

° assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-downs and provisions for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provisions for inventories
during the current year.
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Valuation of trade receivables

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 100.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables amounted to HK$12,278,152,000
(approximately 56% of the Group’s current assets) as
at 31 December 2018, after making loss allowance of
HK$513,545,000.

The Group’s customers operate in a number of geographical
locations with different credit profiles, such that the timing of
trade receivables’ settlement may be influenced by market/
geographical norms.

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit loss which is based on ageing of
the trade receivables and loss rates, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the customers, including current economic
conditions and forward-looking information, all of which involve
significant management judgement. According to the past
experience of the Group, the loss patterns for customers
in different geographical locations are significantly different.
Therefore, when calculating the loss allowance based on
ageing information, the trade receivables are segmented by
geographical locations.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of trade receivables
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
Group’s key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection, segmentation of trade receivables,
estimate of expected credit losses and making related
allowances;

° obtaining an understanding on the key assumptions of the
expected credit loss model adopted by the management,
the historical default data, and the assumptions involved
in management’s estimated loss rates;

° assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data
and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHEEMRE (&)

Valuation of trade receivables (continued)
The Key Audit Matter (continued)

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because the recognition of expected credit losses of
trade receivables involves significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain and could be subjective
thereby increasing the risk of error or management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit continued)

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° comparing the cash received subsequent to the reporting
date for trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2018 with bank statements and other relevant underlying
documentation, on a sample basis.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHEEMRE (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements continue)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHEEMRE (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements continue)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FeEMBKAE

As at 31 December 2018 A=-F—)\F+=-HA=+—H

2018 2017
(Note)
—E2-N\F T —tF
(Kfaz)
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B aE FE T FH&T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI -~ B R 5 451,625 463,372
Goodwill EES 6 319,979 322,995
Interests in associates REEE R A ER 8 896,881 868,238
Interest in a joint venture REELENER 9 36,180 43,844
Deferred expenses EREF 10 3,065 5,145
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE B 17 107,629 88,867
1,815,359 1,792,461
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E bR IE 10 14,451,012 12,616,145
Inventories L= 11 6,103,030 4,263,699
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY 12 1,508,060 1,981,047
22,062,102 18,860,891
Total assets BWERE 23,877,461 20,653,352
EQUITY Es
Share capital A&7 13 145,786 145,986
Reserves & 4,900,936 4,688,728
Total equity MR 5,046,722 4,834,714
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBMRRE(E)

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZF— \F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
(Note)
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
(HiaE)
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
MosE FHBT T
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Contract liabilities AHEE 16 4,065 -
Deferred income RIEUA 16 - 6,821
Borrowings BE 18 1,455,038 642
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBERE 17 30,560 35,902
1,489,663 43,365
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE b FER FRIE 16 10,895,461 8,994,783
Contract liabilities WAl 16 6,400 -
Borrowings EE 18 6,326,374 6,641,918
Taxation payable JERTRRIE 112,841 138,572
17,341,076 15,775,273
Total liabilities BeE 18,830,739 15,818,638
Total equity and liabilities ERkBEEE 23,877,461 20,653,352
Net current assets REBEEFEE 4,721,026 3,085,618
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBEE 6,536,385 4,878,079

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March

2019.

Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
F{EM MEE

Director Director

EF EE

Note:

BEER_Z-NEFZA T RAIEREET

% -

e

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note
2.2.

The notes on pages 76 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ReRax

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
(Note)
—E-N\EF —T—tF
(HaE)
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
BtaE FET FiBT
Revenue & 19 62,481,961 54,543,084
Cost of sales SHER A (59,671,694) (562,196,047)
Gross profit EF 2,810,267 2,347,037
Other gains, net HA WA FEE 20 13,528 18,211
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXZ (1,087,332) (849,407)
Administrative expenses THFAX (593,187) (434,288)
Operating profit R T 21 1,143,276 1,081,553
Finance costs MEEMA 22 (240,405) (204,861)
902,871 876,692
Share of associates’ profits DB R B 49,840 48,528
Share of a joint venture’s loss DiEEELEEE (5,712) (5,509)
Profit before taxation R 75 A A 946,999 919,711
Taxation IR 23 (206,172) (203,270)
Profit for the year FRE 740,827 716,441
Attributable to: LT ALRES:
Equity shareholders of the Company AARERFEAA 740,827 716,441
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) HRAF (BB
- Basic —HEAK 26 51.62 cents #Al 50.34 cents 71l
— Diluted —#E 26 51.53 cents #fl 50.25 cents 71l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders # %515 B A FE1G A% S
Final dividend proposed BRRAE B 25 222,000 215,000
Note: Bt -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under AREER-Z—\F—-A-—HERKEAEEHB RS
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2.  “EAIF I RE B SR ELAFE 165 - RIFFMERE L
BEE  ASBILEER - RMiE2.2 -

FI6R17T9B LW AAMBHREK 2 — 35 °

The notes on pages 76 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERRABAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017

(Note)

—E2-N\F T —tF

(K17%)

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER FAT

Profit for the year E3pingl 740,827 716,441
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FAHMEERA - BRI -

Exchange differences EHZERE (288,615) 404,660
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALEE 452,212 1,121,101
Attributable to: LT ALY :

Equity shareholders of the Company RATIERFFEA 452,212 1,121,101
Note: et -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under A&SEBEER T NF—A—BEXERE AN
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2. &R F IR R BB U H RS ERIF 1555 - BIE
gz mEL  TEEILEER - BfiF2.2-

The notes on pages 76 to 179 form part of these financial statements. FT6R1T9B 2T RAMB®RKR 2 —HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREDER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Equity

attributable to

Capital the Company's

redemption Translation Retained equity

Share capital  Share premium reserve  Capital reserve  General reserve reserve  Other reserve  Deferred reserve eamings  sharholders
KOTRERE

ik EfieR  EAREGE LU - ik EXfRE Rfthife RERE RERN  ARGEE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AR AT

Note f) Note (i Note (i) Note (i) Note (1) Note (v) Note (i)
W) i) ] ety Hi i Wit
Baaceas 1 ey 2017 R R TN T2n OE0 k0 @6 B9 (o) Sk 98se%
Pro for te year ] - - - - - - - - T6441 Tg 1
Other comprefiensie income Efp2EdA - - - - - 404,660 - - - 404,660
Total comprehensive income for the year EREENASE - - - - - 404660 - - T16441 1,121,101
Diend pad Bhie - - - - - - - - (180409 (180409
Transfer of resene BN - - - - 2453 - - - (2453) -
Share options exercised BEfERE 578 18288 - 6,141 - - - - - 12725
Shre options lapsedt BREXK - - - (1129 - - - - 1125 -
Deferted shares purchasedd BEEELRA - - - - - - - 0569) - (0569
Vesting of defered shares EiRNGE - - - - - - - 7904 - 2704
Sheres repurchased EEERHA
—Parvale -t ® - . . - - . - - "
— Premium paid -EfEE - - - - - - - - (667) (667)
— Transfer between reserves -GEEER - - 2 - - - - - 3 -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 (nofe) RoF-tE+A=1-R
Vi3 145,986 852,010 7,004 11,604 147592 (3832 (84,239 (58,386) 3816675 4834714
Representing f&:
Share captel s 145,986
Reserves Gk 4473728
Proposed didend Bike 215,000
4834714
Balance as at 1 January 2018 HE-)\E-f-AzE 145,986 852,070 7,244 11,604 14759 (3,832) (84,239 (58,386) 3,816,675 4834714
Proft for the year Fmi = = = = = = = = THo8a1 40821
Other comprehensive income ELESTON - - - - - (288,615) - - = (288,615)
Total comprehensie income for the year FReERAgE - - - - - (288515) - - 40807 4512
Diend peid il . 2 2 : - 2 5 c o1 @6
Transte ofresenve e = s = = 272 = = = (28726) =
Shre options exercised e 490 15,322 = (6,307) = = = = > 10415
Deferred shares purchased EERELRN = - - - - - - (1202 - (1202
Vestings of defered shares EERNGE = - - - - - - 2500 - 2500
Shares repurchased BEERA
—Par vale -f (690) - - - - - - - - (690)
— Premium paid -BHEE - - - - - - - - (25217) (%5,217)
— Transfer between resenes -EREER - - 690 - - - - - (690) =
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE-NFr=A=1-8
i 145,786 #7392 79 s 174318 [ 34239 B8 4E8 52
Representing; f%:
Share capta k& 145,786
Reserves gk 467893
Proposed dhidend Riks 222,000
5,046,722
Note: /jﬁ it\r :

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the FEEERZZE-N\F—-A-—HERERETERNBR
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2. ERAFIORRBE BN EREERNFE155 « RIFME
BZBEL TEEILEER - BF2.2-

The notes on pages 76 to 179 form part of these financial statements. E76E179E Y AR BHRE Y — 5 -

=]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

mEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE —

Notes:

(i

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

74 VSTECS Holdings Limited

%Eqﬁﬁi(l“ )
—\FtZAZt—HLEFE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that
of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation
in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium
arising from the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies
Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors of
the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of
their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the statutory
surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose
of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve, the profit after
taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting standards. The
amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before profit distribution
to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant regulations, this reserve may
be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase the registered capital
of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from vthe translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2.4(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid and
the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note
2.3(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s shares
through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment compensation.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.13(c).

Annual Report 2018
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
ReLaRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
(Note)
“E-N\E “E—+F
(fiz)
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz TR THT
Cash flows from operating activities gEEE RenE
Net cash used in operations RERA RS FE 28 (a) (597,559) (1,964,577)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRZEENEH (103,592) (11,683)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BENBEBRIHIE (150,944) (118,595)
Net cash used in operating activities B EHMA RS FE (852,095) (2,094,855)
Cash flows from investing activities REED HERE
Interest received BURFE 9,071 15,637
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BELREE (40,277) (51,637)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BE REEREHE
plant and equipment 5,355 2,927
Investment in associates REEARRRE (6,867) (255,485)
Dividends received from associates R AN | &) 7,192 7,400
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMAZRLFE (25,526) (281,158)
Cash flows from financing activities BEED HERE
Payment for the repurchase of shares BRRMTR (25,907) (699)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TERRERSEIE 10,415 12,725
Proceeds from new bank loans HIERITENFTR A 28 (b) 17,009,531 24,596,184
Repayment of borrowings BEREE 28 (b) (15,866,692) (22,338,113)
Payment for deferred shares EERSAD F3R (12,022) (9,569)
Vesting of deferred shares EXRNEE 2,500 27,924
Interest paid ERFE 28 (b) (240,405) (204,861)
Dividend paid EARE (215,190) (180,406)
Net cash generated from financing activities BREZHME HEFE 662,230 1,903,185
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re LR ZSEMRLFE (215,391) (472,828)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—RA—BAzReLReEEN 1,981,047 1,980,026
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEEREE) 2 52 (257,596) 473,849
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZR=+—BZRERALEEY 12 1,508,060 1,981,047
Note: Hfat -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the AEEER-ZZE-N\F-—A—HEREREAUBR
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2. ERAFIRREBUS iﬁ EHEBFE155E - BIFATE
BZW®EL  TEEILEER - BF2.2-

The notes on pages 76 to 179 form part of these financial statements. FI6E1T9B 2T RAAMB®REKR 2 —HH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt %5 30 =& B &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of Information
Technology (“IT”) products, provision of enterprise system tools for
IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and implementation,
training, maintenance and support services, as well as the provision
of network security hardware and software required for big data and
cloud computing.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd Floor,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2.2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

P 7% R R B R (4R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=

—N\E+ZA=t+—HLEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1

2.2

78  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Basis of preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have effect on the financial statements and sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group. Note 2.2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

(@  Overview
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

e HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

e HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(@)

Overview (continued)
e HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Details of the changes in accounting policies are discussed
in note 2.2(b) for HKFRS 9 and note 2.2(c) for HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements whereby any cumulative effect of
initial application is recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R R MY RE (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

80 VSTECS Holdings Limited

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial result of
the Group. Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories:
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets measured
at FVPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

measured

Under HKFRS 9, the Group’s derivatives embedded
in contracts where the host is a financial asset in
the scope of the standard are not separated from
the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole
is assessed for classification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continuea)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group have
investments in certain unlisted equity securities
held for strategic purposes that were previously
measured at cost at each reporting date under
HKAS 39 have been designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling). The difference between the previous
carrying amount and fair value have no significant
financial impacts to the opening reserve as at 1
January 2018.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial assets and recognises related
gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy in notes 2.8, 2.9 and 2.10.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1
January 2018.

2.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR ER A B o (4R
~NF+=A=t+-BALEE

ST HEBRE @

Ea

REE (#)

(b) BAUBHREERFE9

5
(1)

BEERERARLE -2

TRIAE)
CREENREREEZ
DH(E)
R-E-NF+-A=
T—R AKEESR
ETREBENFEAZ
FLETEABSFKRE -
NEREEB G ER
F9RN I RE B H
HERAFTERERER
FEIAEMZERA
(TRER) - NEKREZ

BENFERZHANE
RYEHN T —\F

—A—HZHNFEE
RERHBZE -

ERAEENABRES
RS ERFE IR
DHEMGTEVEEER
R s e 1R
BE2HEME28 2.9
K2 108 80K
st ©

EMBREBENTER
PR ER - RZF—
NE—RA—BOMAEY
BRERESHELER
2R ERE S MR

SEANFSRTE -

WZE-NF—A—
B ARELEIEEX
BUREEX MY B EE
M BRERRATE
FIANB=E -

—nEEH 81



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=

—N\E+ZA=t+—HLEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(i

82  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS
39 with the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model. The
ECL model requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
and loan to an associate). Financial assets measured
at fair value are not subject to the ECL assessment.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy
for accounting for credit losses, see note 2.8.

The Group has assessed the ECLs of the financial
assets measured at amortised cost at 1 January
2018 and concluded that there had been no
significant financial impacts to the Group’s financial
position at 1 January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continuea)

(b)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(iif)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative periods

has not been restated. Differences in
the carrying amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018, which is immaterial
to the financial statements. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 continues to
be reported under HKAS 39 and thus may not

be comparable with the current period; and

- the determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held based on the
facts and circumstances that existed at 1
January 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

()

84  VSTECS Holdings Limited

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which
specified the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method whereby any cumulative effect of
initial application is recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under HKAS 18.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial result
of the Group. Further details of the nature and effect of
the changes on previous accounting policies are set out
below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2. BT HEEE ®)
(c)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (c) BAYBmMELERFE15
(continued) 5 RBHEEFIIVAE
8 ONE D,
()  Timing of revenue recognition (i) o i R
Previously, revenue arising from provision of services - RERBESE
was recognised over time, whereas revenue from 2 U g e R R i AR
sale of goods was generally recognised at a point MmkBHEEERZ &=
in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of —MREREEERR
the goods had passed to the customers. LEREBRERP 2B

BIEFER -

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the i Sy
customer obtains control of the promised good F155  WamREP
or service in the contract. This may be at a single BREHNTEEM THE
point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the 2 PRI RIS HE R

following three situations in which control of the A RE—RE %ﬁi—
promised good or service is regarded as being BREA - BB ER
transferred over time: HEBIE15EEE N

TTEBREWR AN
TEE Gk IR 2 1 A
SHERNEEZ

A.  When the customer simultaneously receives A BEPREBE
and consumes the benefits provided by the MR RERES R
entity’s performance, as the entity performs; FREREENM

Rtz M= - Bl
ERBEAOR

B.  When the entity’s performance creates or B. EEREANGH
enhances an asset (for example work in EohE —HE
progress) that the customer controls as the E(lmiE®ag) -
asset is created or enhanced; &P H 7z eE

IR EMEES
2= iR

C. When the entity’s performance does not C. EEBEANITE
create an asset with an alternative use to HEHERBEY
the entity and the entity has an enforceable REBgz2E&E -
right to payment for performance completed BZzERBYHLES
to date. BERxK2EHN
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

()

86  VSTECS Holdings Limited

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

)

(i

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that is considered in determining when
the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a
significant financial impact on how the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2.21).

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money when a
contract contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance of revenue
recognition or significantly deferred.

It is not common for the Group to receive payments
significantly in arrears or in advance of revenue
recognition in the Group’s arrangements with its
customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continuea)

()

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services
in the contract, then the entitiement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group recognises the related
revenue. For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

Previously, non-current and current portions of fees
received in advance were presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position under “deferred income”
and “trade and other payables”, respectively.

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group has
reported these fees received in advance as “contract
liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial
position since 1 January 2018 (see note 16).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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—N\E+ZA=t+—HLEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(d

88  VSTECS Holdings Limited

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the
date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date of the transaction for
each payment or receipt should be determined in this way. The
adoption of HK(IFRIC)22 does not have any material impact on
the financial position and the result of operations of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Consolidation

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Consolidation (continuea)

(@

90 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture (see note 2.3(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

02  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2.9).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continuea)

(©)

94  VSTECS Holdings Limited

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(if) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Annual Report 2018

2.

TEE

FATHERME

2.4 SN ()

(c)

SERQA
SEETHAER(MERE
BEBRKERBZEE) NI
EERRIZKEEAFH - B
HEERPBRRBRATA
FHREREREE

(i) EBERBEERHEAZ
Y g R E

(i) WARFEIZFHEX
BE - RIFLFHESR

REEBEIMRMRER S
BZBITEXNHOR
AEE EHEBATR
EXFABENFRA
RFEX R

(i) FIBPISEN ZHMER
RERTZBIHED

EHEARER - BEREI
EBNFRERBERETE
RILEREZHPHNEME
WIAmMELZELEZR -
BIAEMEEEA - R
EBIINEBE  IARKMLE
HBRAZELZEBEHRD
BEBEaRkRNERLEMR
EE D e

WREIEEBMELEZHE
RAVERBERZBINE
BLEERRBRERE  ¥®
WEEREZEXKRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 % - BMERRE
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated ME  BERZEBERKANRZR
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure AT ERBEBEIE KA
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. RREBEEEZEREGZRE -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or EEHIFEE AR RRLEE K
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is e RANEER - B St
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item FFEZEEZKRAR - Fe g
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured &2 ﬁX A ABEZRESENR
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit BRAE—EBUYAE(NER) -
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. FTBEHEMEBERREEBR  HR

EEZVBARTEEREAZE -
Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of mME - - BERBBEBBEBEZWED
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual RMBEZEBEBE 2HBARHBEER
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the (mB)E - LEEZARERMEE
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful FEs R FERFH(URESE
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have BEIVNEGENE  UMEEX
been adopted are summarised as follows: N oo FTEMzITEF R T
Buildings held for own use carried at cost &R AFIERE1EE BEF 2% - 5%
Furniture and fixtures (R A R FEE 20%
Office equipment ## A ER 20%
Computers & 20%
Motor vehicles /TE 20%

& 20% or lease period whichever is shorter

20%3kHEHA (ABE & R%E)

Leasehold improvements T2 & #) 3 # {

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and BEZHBEELATFERFHER
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. EHMEARBA RAR(WER) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. TEETHEME
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25 ME - BMERRZREBE)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

96 VSTECS Holdings Limited

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
their intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ 2= MY AE (AR)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)
2.6 Goodwill 2.6 B8

Goodwill represents the excess of: FEENTME ZHNZE5

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration () FEEREHQFTE - ®
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in WESTEMIEERERD S
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously BERASBE AR HKES
held equity interest in the acquiree; over Ffr ?—r Hx $ BN AFTEZR

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and (i) #WREFINKEBHRATE
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date. AHENEERBENFAF

@ -

When (i) is greater than (), then this excess is recognised E()ARRN)E - EBELARIE

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase. m=EPERAZEB KRB E -

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. B AR R REEET

Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each R -XBEaHMEAZEESR

cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is ZEEHARKEMNHBRBEFRZ

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and BErERESEEBRSEEE N

is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7). WEFERBEAR(RRF2.7) -

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any REFRALERSELASENR - B

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the BABREEMG AT ESEIRE

calculation of the gain or loss on disposal. HHERBHMAEF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

08 VSTECS Holdings Limited

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ST BREMEw
(continued)
2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, 2.7 KRB TR ~ BEE QT -
a joint venture and other non-financial assets SELERAMIFENTE
ENREZHE

Non-Financial assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not

B AT B AR R R AT 4

available for use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested BArzEMBEERAEE  BE
at least annually for impairment. Other non-financial assets LEFERBANR ELRBESH

are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

HERE BRI E D R AR
EWEE - SR EMIEVBEE
BWEERT - REBREREER
HERBHAKO B ZEN
BaRAER - ATRESEEE
EZAFENRHEXAEER
BEMERz2BEGE - EFFHE

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate REER  HFRRKRETER
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of AARBMERTSEYEERHEE

money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash generating units or groups of cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates,

a joint venture and other non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34 “Interim financial reporting”
in respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the company has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses as determined
below:

(A)

100 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which are those losses that are expected
to occur over the expected life of the trade receivables.
The loss allowance is estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any
changes recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables through a loss
allowance account.

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Impairment losses were recognised when there was
objective evidence of impairment and were measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the
effect of discounting was material. Objective evidence of
impairment included observable data that came to the
attention of the Group about events that had an impact on
the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as significant
financial difficulty of the debtor.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other receivable
was considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable was written
off against the gross carrying amount of those assets
directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at FVPL for which transaction costs

are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of

how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(i

102 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified as FVPL when the contractual cash flows
of the investment do not represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.

If the contractual cash flows of the non-equity
investments held by the Group represent solely
payments of principal and interest, the investment
would be classified as amortised cost, as the
Group does not invest in such instruments other
than principally to collect those contractual cash
flows. Interest income from investments carried
at amortised cost is calculated using the effective
interest method (see note 2.21(iii)). A loss allowance
on investments carried at amortised cost would
be recognised with reference to credit losses
expected to arise on the instrument, discounted
where the effect would be material, and taking into
account whether the credit risk of the instrument
had increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ST BREMEw

(continued)

29 ERRERESKRE#)

(A) BE=ZZEZ—N\HE—H—H
REANBEE)
(i) HZHE

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2.21(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

(B)

104 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in equity securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
were stated at cost (for impairment see note 2.8 - (B)
policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018).

Dividend income from equity securities were recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 2.21(iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses were also recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and

short-

term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

(@)

106 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction
from equity. Repurchased shares are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve is
credited with the amount of fair value of shares on granting
to awardees, and the relevant employment costs net of
any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited to
the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value
of the awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is
transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. ST BREMEw
(continued)
2.14 Trade and other payables and contract liabilities 2.14 f’i SREMEMNREUR
I:I /n E 'T%::
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and ESREMENRESERERF
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BER EENEERRNB ERE
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be HEK A E  BRIFBRTZTED

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2.8).

2.15 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGHBEME

(continued)

2.16 Income tax 216 FT15 %

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

108 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)

2.16 Income tax (continued) 216 FT 5% (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(@)  Pension obligations
The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continueq)

(@

110 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement
of financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continueq)

(d)  Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings).

(e)  Deferred shares
Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)).

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an

evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

)

112 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

(b)  Finance leases (continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2.7.

2.20 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income 221 EmREME A

114 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognized under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months
or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

In the comparative period, revenue from sale of goods
is recognised when products have been delivered to the
customers which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the products and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract. It was

recognised on a similar basis in the comparative period.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3R R MY RE (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=

—N\E+ZA=t+—HLEE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

()

116 VSTECS Holdings Limited

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7 #R R P L (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHREBEw

(continued)
2.23 Related parties (continueq) 2258 Nt #)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) EAXTFTEMBERT -
conditions applies: (continued) R ERHEASEEEH
(B
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) ZEBRBRE SE=7%
other entity is an associate of the third entity. Braeh®E  ms—
BB AZFE=F&EE
ZEsE AT o
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZERBRUAREECNE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an AEEEHECERD
entity related to the Group. & B 2 M 2 M &% 2 Bt
‘BT ET & o
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEBREZ(@BETE
person identified in (a). Z A ) R R
o
(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) (a)(i)IERFTIE 2 AT ¥
over the entity or is a member of the key management ZEBBERTEN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). S AZEEB(NZER
ZERAE)NEEER
AB o
(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a (vii) ZERBKEMBEE
part, provides key management personnel services ERIKE AR R/AE
to the Group or the Group’s parent. AR E 2 &R RR M
TEERABRY -
Close members of the family of a person are those family EATZEBRKEKE RTEEA
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced FETEHEZERBIIREEZAT
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. UEBATHEBZREKE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

118 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (“US$”), the Singapore
Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian Rupiah
(“RP”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with a net notional amount
of approximately HK$449,716,000 (2017: approximately
HK$320,128,000).

A 5% strengthening of the following currencies other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities against
the HK$ at 31 December 2018 would have increased/
(decreased) the post-tax profit in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as
for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

3.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 B B

(%)

PR ER A B o (4R
—\FtZAZt—BLEFE

EERQFVE

BREREZEE)
(a) HNEE B

2 (48)

AEE
2018
—2-N\%
HK$’000
F#x

2017
—tF
HK$’000

THET

- =

RMB AR
uss$ ETT

S$ s T
THB 37

RP Elfe/E

(19,039)
(50,413)
8,992
24,179
1,992

45,258
(61,046)
13,172
18,371
7,542

A 5% weakening of the above currencies against the
HK$ would have had the equal but opposite effect on
the above currencies, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details
of which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank borrowings, details of which have been
disclosed in note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2018, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$65,291,000 (2017:
HK$55,921,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©)

120 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The exposures to these credit risks are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis by established credit
policies and procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical
loss experience in collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
in different geographical locations, the loss allowance
based on past due status is further distinguished by
geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as
at 31 December 2018:

BHEEBREERQFE

(%)

3.1 I EREZE 2

(c)

EERR &)

TREH#EBEAEEAR -
—NE+—_A=+—8%E
5 FE Wy XOE BT E e 15 B R R

LRIEHMEEEBEENER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
FEHEBLEEY% REA EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
North Asia itz
Current (not past due) BPHER (GR#HR) 0.01% 8,160,221 1,057
1-90 days past due #HEI1ZE90H 1.06% 892,346 9,442
More than 90 days past due #HAZ HA90H 51.6% 677,321 349,155
9,729,888 359,654
Southeast Asia HE
Current (not past due) BNER (R Hp) 0.15% 2,040,225 3,053
1-90 days past due #ER1E90H 0.39% 822,911 3,244
More than 90 days past due #HAZ 790 H 74.3% 198,673 147,594
3,061,809 153,891
Total B 12,791,697 513,545

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
note 2.8 — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At
31 December 2017, trade receivables of $401,725,000
were determined to be impaired.

BEERERARLE

BHMEBERLENZBE=F
MERBEERASE - ZF
HEERTEBE - ARBKE
FEE st B4R B R B A B RO -
B A AR DA Je AN 5% [ 4 R R
REMBHAAFHRREL
BERRAZBENER -

EBEERFEIIEIET
BEH
RZE—NF—A—HA -
BEERENTEEERERE
RAEBEE(RMFE2.86—R
—E-N\F—-A—HAEA
BIE) - R —tF+=
A=+—8  #5EKHE
401,725,000 8 LEEE A
1R E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREAKBEERKQF¥E
(continued) (#&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B B = ()
(c)  Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB &)
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of R—_ZE—+tF+=_A=+—
HK$1,628,712,000, which were fully performing, were B EBE28BET2EZEK
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number T8 1,628,712,0008 T2
of independent customers for whom there is no recent BEERRE - ZEHRER
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade ZEBURPLPEH  BREL
receivables by due date is as follows: T B ANRES - ZEEH
FEU BRI A S S 2R
BT

2017

T4

HK$'000

FAT

0 - 30 days past due #HI0ZE30H 1,076,622

31 - 60 days past due #1HA312E60H 231,901

61 — 90 days past due wHI61E90H 112,765

Over 90 days past due %1 HAEB @90 H 207,424

1,628,712
Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables ESRWHIEBSEREZE

are as follows: B

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1 January m—H—H 401,725 288,425

Net provision and receivable written off % # K & il $4 & Ue ZI8 F 58 132,116 107,591

Exchange difference b = (20,296) 5,709

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 513,545 401,725
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MBEREERAFE
(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 3.1 MEREREZE®
(d)  Liquidity risk (d) MENER B2
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining BEZRDERBREERRE
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an wEFTRZHESERATESE
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury FHMZEEREREES -
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping AEEVENEBER I H
credit lines available. BRCEERE  #F4Ee
ZEEM o
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEEREHESREEE
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and cash ERAKERDHESHE(R
and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash HEAEDRREULRRES LR
flows. The table below analyses the Group’s financial SEEW)ZEHEEREM - T
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the KO ERBREBHESNL
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual HEAZHB THEIMTHEAR
maturity date. MR EAR 2 AN EET BB
& o
Lessthan1 Between1and Between 2 and

Total year 2 years Syears  After 5 years

2] —ER -2-f ZZRE BBLE

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fihn Fién ThL ThL T

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=ZA=+-H

Bank borrowings BIEE 8,151,102 6,567,179 64,667 1,519,256 -

Finance lease liabilities REHERE 1,139 615 311 273 S

Trade and other payables EOREMERNFTIE 10,895,461 10,895,461 - - -

At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+=ZA=1+-H

Bank borrowings RIEE 6,790,603 6,790,603 - - -

Finance lease liabilties BEMERRE 12389 631 501 257 -

Trade and other payables EHREAMENTE 8,994,783 8,994,783 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREAKBEERKQF¥E

(continued) (%)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EAXAEMRET
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard KREFEBEKRKZ E H A BE (R A
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order EFEARNIFERLE  IUARKRE
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other Rftp R LA H M ﬁ 0 HEIRMEF
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to = A REESEBERNERE R
reduce the cost of capital. K& RN o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BHEHNFBREARARERE K&
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return B efHEX RN TRHRREZKES
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to B oMmBRREBEEEN - BITHE
reduce debt. HHEERME
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/ REFBIRGEBREHEBEEHLX
total assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided ﬁbﬁ BR o Z Lk RIREHEER
by total assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings BEESE - G FRBIRGE
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in g( BEGAHBRRAEFARZR
the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and RIERHEE ) RESEERESE
cash equivalents. Total asset is calculated as shown in the EBYEtE - B EERGE S B
consolidated statement of financial position. MERETE o
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at TEIMAEER T - NF+
31 December 2018: —A=+— E|Z§$ tﬁ
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 18) BEE(Mit18) 7,781,412 6,642,560
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB MREEED
(Note 12) (Bft12) (1,508,060) (1,981,047)
Net debt B F5E 6,273,352 4,661,513
Total assets BEE 23,877,461 20,653,352
Net debt/total assets ratio EHFRE B R R 0.26 0.23
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEREAKBEERKQF¥E

(continued) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AEEMET
()  Financial instruments measured at fair value () NAFEFEZEZ®8MI
The following table presents the carrying value of the TERENAREBRIRKEEEE
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the EPANFEFEZESBITA
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis REERAZERE  TUE
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined BB EHmAEER F135R o
in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”. The level into FEAEIFATZAFELR
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined BZ=ERBHI R~ - A FEE
with reference to the observability and significance of the HEMBHEIZMRAIIZ2E
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: THEREMNTRE ASEZ
EREELREEREER:
o Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only . FE—BAGE: EFH
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in F—EAE AEER
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at HREENMEBERE S
the measurement date HEIEERMIS 2 K&
AERE)GTEZATF
&
° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable . EFE_BaHE: £
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using B ABE(ADITFS
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs F—ERZOBRE A
are inputs for which market data is not available HE)AVYRERERKR
OB R ASE - T
Al R A BUE R EE
BEEMSEEBE2HAH
=
o Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using o FZEHREE: FHRE
significant unobservable inputs KA B R A IE st
E2RYE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

()  Financial instruments measured at fair value

BHEEBREERLQTE

(%)

3.3 DEEMET#)

(i)

ARFEFEZERT

(continued) H(#)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EBH E-EHR E=ZER #Em
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt T T
At 31 December 2018 R-ZBE—-N\E
+=A=+-—H
Assets EE
Forward contracts REEXN - 170,157 - 170,157
Listed and unlisted securities kI LETES 68,094 100,000 152,883 320,977
Liabilities =L
Derivative liabilities PTHEAE = 3,548 = 3,548
At 31 December 2017 R-IE—+tF
t=A=+-8
Assets EE
Forward contracts RERNE A LY - 104,910 - 104,910
Listed securities EHES 133,324 - - 133,324
Liabilities =L
Derivative liabilities TEaE - 5,846 - 5,846

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair
value hierarchy.

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair

value measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is
determined by discounting the contractual forward
price and deducting the current spot rate. The discount
rate used is derived from the relevant government yield
curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an
adequate constant credit spread.

The fair value of securities in Level 2 is determined
by the Black-Scholes model. The volatility used is
derived from the historical quote price of the underlying
securities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of unlisted equity securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the underlying assets’ values.
As at 31 December 2018, it is estimated that with
other variables held constant an increase/(decrease) in
5% of underlying assets’ values would have increased/
(decreased) the Group’s OCI by HK$7,644,000.

All of the Group’s unlisted securities are equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) as these securities
are held for strategic purposes. Approximate 63% of these
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on those
investments during the year (2017: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—-=

—N\E+ZA=t+—HLEE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

From 1 January 2018, gains or losses arising from the
remeasurement of the Group’s unlisted equity securities
are recognised in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
in other comprehensive income. Upon disposal of these
equity securities, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is transferred directly to retained
earnings.
from the disposal of these unlisted equity securities
were presented in the “Other gains, net” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Prior to 1 January 2018, any gains arising

(iv)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value
The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts given
the liquid and short-term nature.

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@

128 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs of inventories are recorded to the extent where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continuea)

(b)

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. MI%¥ - BRERRZE

Buildings
held for own
Leasehold use carried  Furniture and Office Motor  Assets under
improvements at cost fixtures equipment  Computers vehicles  construction Total
RERASIER
HENELE BEEAET KAREE BOZERGB £ RE EREE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHL TAT FAT FHT FAT FHL TAT
As at 1 January 2017 R=F—+F5—A-H
Cost A 35,753 249,027 13,137 11,019 39,386 10,772 836 359,930
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (22,698) (17,613) (5,617) (8,584) (19,527) (5,583) — (79,622)
Net book amount ERFE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-T—+#&
+ZA=t-HILEE
Opening net book amount FVEEFRE 13,055 231,414 7,520 2,435 19,859 5,189 836 280,308
Additions hE 5,628 178,542 2,910 5,410 3,971 4774 3,125 204,360
Transfer E L - - 158 - 102 - (260) -
Disposals HE (56) - (2,279) (20) (1,185) (395) (23) (3,958)
Depreciation e (5,077) (10,451) (2,261) (1,326) (7,112) (2,397) - (28,624)
Exchange difference ERER 800 7,422 652 300 1,847 7 258 11,286
Closing net book amount FRREFE 14,350 406,927 6,700 6,799 17,482 7,178 3,936 463,372
As at 31 December 2017 and  RZ=Z—+%+=A
1 January 2018 =+-BR-T-N\E
—A—A
Cost KA 43,121 435,572 11,609 16,335 34,054 12,059 3,936 556,686
Accumulated depreciation 2ETHE (28,771) (28,645) (4,909) (9,536) (16,572) (4,881) - (93,314)
Net book amount EEFE 14,350 406,927 6,700 6,799 17,482 7,178 3,936 463,372
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE-Z—N\&
+ZRA=+-RLEFE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 14,350 406,927 6,700 6,799 17,482 7,178 3,936 463,372
Additions RE 6,124 4,206 7,685 4,366 8,889 3,906 5,101 40,277
Transfer E - - 2,661 372 1,697 - (4,730) -
Disposals HE - - (250) (2,774) (2,266) (838) 6) (6,134)
Depreciation nE (6,768) (13,917) (2,337) (2,610) (6,827) (2,794) - (35,253)
Exchange difference ERER (483) (8,784) (287) (215) (413) (260) (195) (10,637)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 13,223 388,432 14,172 5,938 18,562 7,192 4,106 451,625
As at 31 December 2018 NZE-N\E
+-A=+-8
Cost A 47,364 430,246 20,843 17,113 36,012 13,413 4,106 569,097
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (34,141) (41,814) (6,671) (11,175) (17,450) (6,221) - (117,472)
Net book amount FEIE 13,223 388,432 14,172 5,938 18,562 7,192 4,106 451,625
The net book value of property, plant and equipment under MEBFEBEBTYWE BEEZER
finance leases as at 31 December 2018 was HK$1,616,000 (2017: —E-NFF+ A=+ —BZEEF
HK$1,758,000). 451,616,000 (=& — £ F:

1,758,000 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Goodwill 5 E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Goodwill [EES 319,979 322,995
As at 1 January W—A—H 322,995 306,905
Exchange difference [E 5 Z=%8 (3,016) 16,090
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8 319,979 322,995

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis
of assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections range from 5.01% to 10% (2017: 5.1%
to 10%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rates as at 31 December 2018 which range
from 5.8% to 12% (2017: 6.35% to 12.8%) were applied in
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount
rates used reflect the risk-free rates and the premiums for
specific risks relating to the business units to which the CGUs
relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount
of goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RHBARZRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are RZZE—NF+_A=+—"HZEEH
as follows: BRABIZFBERT :

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AL, FEgEER Dt
HB FX AL ith 26 FTEXEBRZE LR ERITRAE FMERES HiE L3
(M)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the 4 ordinary shares of 100% —
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
VST Group Limited KEBERHE REZER ZBELFS JREBBREEIZTZEER 100% —
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
RNEAZEEFAERL  F RABESHEMBRER AKK100,000,0007T 100% —
A
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited products in
Hong Kong
BHER(EB)ERRQ e REEDHEMMEER 2REBR — 100%

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
62,000,000/% & 1% S HEIEIE

igh)

Chong Qing VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT US$20,000,000 — 100%
Technology products in the PRC
Development
Co., Ltd

ERRARARBERE F RAESHEMBES  20,000,000% 7T — 100%
RAA]
ARECERRRARR  PRC Project investment RMB30,000,000 — 100%
Bl in the PRC

ARELERRRARA  HE NP EIERRE AR#30,000,0007T — 100%
Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continueo) 7. RHBLARZRE @
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are RZZE—NF+_A=1+—"HZEEH
as follows: (continued) BARZFEBHOT (&)
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AL FsERE I
HE FX 3L ith 26 FTEEBRSE I ERTRAE EMERFEE HiE SEE2
(Mzz)
ECS Technology (China)  Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Limited provider of IT products

and services for IT
infrastructure in

Hong Kong
ERRBR(PEDERAE BB REBIEEREERNUL  11,500,0000% % &K — 100%
B AR E B E LR
FER R RS HER
ECS Technology (HK) Hong Kong Provider of IT products 10 ordinary shares — 100%
Co., Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
BRENBRARRAT BB EREARREMNEN  10RE &R — 100%
R B AR i AR 75 e
5]
ECS Computers (HK) Hong Kong Provider of IT products 1 ordinary share — 100%
Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
ERER(FE)BRR e EREARBREMNMNEN 1REBKR — 100%
PHE AR R MRS L
5]
ECS Chongaing PRC Electronic settlement US$70,000,000 — 100%
Marketing & Payment business centre and
Co., Ltd provider of IT products

and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
EREAEIUEHEEEE PH PEEFEERBKFT LK 70,000,000% 5T — 100%
(ZYNS] BB Em AR
BERRIEREHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries (ontinued) 7. RRBARZRE®
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are RZZE—NF+_A=+—"HZEEH
as follows: (continued) BARZFEBHOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AL FisERAE I
HE FX 3L ith 26 FTEEBRKE I ERTREEMERFEE HiE LS
(Mzz)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$1,282,000 — 100%
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
BMTERBERRAER  H BB ERLEM  1,282,0005% T — 100%
NG RHL B R e AR 7% 4 FE
]
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of IT products US$25,000,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EB(LB)ERARAR  HE mEEARHRAERNEM  25,000,000E7T — 100%
PHE B AR e AR 755 41 FE
]
ECS China Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$15,000,000 — 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd and services for IT
infrastructure
in the PRC
EARRHR(E8)BRAR  FE HEEARHRERNLEM 15,000,000 7T — 100%
RHY AW R AR 48
[l
ECS Technology PRC Provider of IT products US$10,000,000 — 100%
(Guangzhou) and services for IT
Company Limited infrastructure
in the PRC
BEMNERBHE AR A A # HEIEARHRERNLEM 10,000,000 7T — 100%
RHEEW R RS (8
5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

PR ER A B o (4R
—\FtZAZt—BLEFE

7. RMEB AR 2RE =

—NF+=
ZHERT

el

BAw

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

A=+—HZxZMWH
((#E)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR FigER ot
i FX AL ith 26 FTEEBRKE R ERITRAE EMERFES B E
(M)
T ERELEE PRC Project holding RMB2,500,000 — 100%
BRAR in the PRC
ngﬁ DRERR A T RPEEEEEFE AR #2,500,0007T — 100%
BRD
VSTECS Holdings Singapore Investment holding 446,036,800 ordinary 100% -
(Singapore) Limited and distribution of IT shares
(formerly known as products, provision
ECS Holdings Limited) of IT services and
enterprise systems
in Singapore
VSTECS Holdings #rns RETIE R FREER 446,036,800/% & 37 % 100% —
(Singapore) Limited DHEABRER - 2
(AIFBECS Holdings HEMBHERS K%
Limited) £S5
VSTECS (Singapore) Singapore Provider of IT products 18,600,000 ordinary — 100%
Pte. Ltd (formerly known and services for shares of S$1 each
as ECS Computers IT infrastructure in
(Asia) Pte. Ltd) Singapore
VSTECS (Singapore) Fhns MM EARBEMRRE 13,600,000 FAREE1H — 100%
Pte. Ltd (RITBECS SRR B %t AR A5 A Tz AR
Computers (Asia) Pte. ™
Ltd)
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) ~ Singapore Retail of IT products, 150,000 ordinary shares — 100%
Pte Ltd IT equipment and of S$1 each
accessories in
Singapore
Pacific City(Asia Pacific) ¥l RFINERBEMBRE  150,00008 F R EE 1370035 — 100%
Pte Ltd i BaRHR R A R TLZ E AR
"EE
muEspRERA® -z \s45% 135
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries ontinuec) 7. REB AR Z2RE®
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are RZZE—NF+_A=+—"HZEEH
as follows: (continued) BARZFEBHOT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and  share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
AL, FisERAEDE
HHB FX 3L ith 26 FTEXBRQE LR ERITRAE FMERFES HiE e 3
(Kizt)
Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products 5,000,000 ordinary shares — 100%
and services for of S$1 each
[T infrastructure in
Singapore
Exeed Pte Ltd N RETIE D HEAEHLE 5,000,000/ @R EE 1370 — 100%
o M B SRR R AR Wt &k
R ARTS
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of IT products 2,000,000 and 24,785 — 100%
(formerly known as ECS in Singapore ordinary shares
Indo Pte. Ltd) of S$1 and
US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd TN L EAREERDS  2,000,0000% %24,7850 & - 100%
(BIFBECS Indo ] %5 B EE 1 5T AN T &
Pte. Ltd) 1.8166% 7T 2 &k
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of — 100%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore S$1 each
ECS Infocom(Phils) g F IR BB R IR FRRE BTN T2 — 100%
Pte. Ltd A
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of IT products 100,000 ordinary shares — 100%
in Indonesia of US$1 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya ENfe ORAMEHEERD#HE 100,000 FARAEE1ETZ - 100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continuea)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are

as follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Principal activities and

7. RMEB AR 2RE =

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

R=Z—NF+-A=+—B2xEM
AT ZHBOT (&)

Percentage of
interest held

Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note)
MR FiEER ot
iB FX 3L ith 26 FTEEBREE T ERTRAE EMERFEE HiE B4
(Mzz)
VST ECS (Thailand) Thailand Provider of IT products 7,783,000 shares of - 100%
Co., Ltd and services for 10 Baht each
IT infrastructure
in Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) e ZREMBEERREM 7,783,000 FREE10% — 100%
Co., Ltd RHL B R e AR 75 4 FE izl )
5]
VSTECS (Myanmar) Myanmar Provision of marketing 300,000 shares of — 100%
Services Company research and IT US$1 each
Limited (formerly known services in Myanmar
as ECS Value Myanmar
Services Company
Limited)
VSTECS (Myanmar) i) REEERETSH#ERT 300,000 FREEIETZ — 100%
Services Company MENEHE R B 15
Limited
(RIFEECS Value
Myanmar Services
Company Limited)
ECS Value (Cambodia) Cambodia Import and export of IT KHR20,000,000 — 100%
Co., Ltd. products in Cambodia
ECS Value (Cambodia) RIiBE ARIFEWEEFABLE  20,000,0005R 755 — 100%

Co., Ltd.

i O

Note:

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established in
the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

Wit -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

. . Y — a2z
8. Interests in Associates 8. REt&E N MER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
Unlisted ¥
Share of net assets DIFEE 623,250 612,948
Loan to an associate BPBERTMER 3,525 3,510
626,775 616,458
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIME T
Share of net assets DIFEE 270,106 251,780
896,881 868,238
Market value of listed shares W mE 140,390 173,769
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BETBERARNERNELNE 1A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. mEAF 2BERBBHTITER—FRAK
@ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Interests in Associates ontinveq) 8. REEE NTAIELR w)
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: RZBE-NF+ZA=T—HBZHER
AIEBEOT
Country of Particulars of issued Equity interest held by the
Name incorporation Principal activities  shares held Group
HHE AR S B R FTEEWR e RITRGFHE KEBEFiF 2 RE
2018 2017
—BE-NF —Z=—+F
VSTECS Phils, Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT 3,097,055 49.99% 49.99%
(formerly known as products ordinary shares of
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc.) Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils, Inc. JEEE DHEMBRER 3,097,055 B R EE 49.99% 49.99%
(RITEMSI-ECS Phils., 1004 &= 2 H iR
Inc.)
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of 180,000,000 42.76% 41%
(formerly known as information ordinary shares of
ECS ICT Berhad) technology and RMO0.5 each
services for IT
infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad SR AHRFEDEARHEE 180,000,000/ &R E 42.76% 41%
(RIFBECS ICT Berhad) BREEMMERER HE0SSHZEBR
%
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. RE BB RS 196,000/% & A EI {& 100 49% 49%
Rk 2 IR
APAL Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 300,000,000 25.95% 25.95%
ordinary shares of
US$0.1 each
APALIZEIR B R A ) REHS REE 300,000,000/ & f& @ 25.95% 25.95%
[ECRESTwA-S =1
VSTAM Technology PRC Investment RMB500,000,000 45% 45%
Development Limited management
services in the PRC
BREARRER i KPP EREIREERR AR¥500,000,0007T 45% 45%
BRATA %
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8. Interests in Associates (continueq) 8. REtENTIMER =
None of the associates were considered individually material to the MEBREARENmMERRAEANER
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the consolidated BEKX  ZEHFESUBERE P T
financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate financial information ERNAICBREHSBREXER - A&
(the Group’s share) of these associates is as follows: DIEZEBRE LRI BB BER D

™~
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAxT
Profit from continuing operations FRB A A 49,840 48,528
Other comprehensive income HE2mEmKRA (20,872) 41,679
Total comprehensive income ZHEBALTE 28,968 90,207
. . A B AL M sz
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAxT
Share of net assets DIFEE 36,180 43,844
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: RZE-NF+ZA=+—HzE621
EHBWT

Particulars of

Country of registered and Equity interest
Name establishment  Principal activities paid-in capital held by the Group
Z8 AVAETE TEXEH HfREHERFE rEEfiRs 2 RE
2018 2017
—E-N\§ ZT—+tF
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of

smartphones and computer
peripheral product
M IERESRR I E - EERHEDETHES ARK155000,000C  38.03% 38.03%
BRAT] MEZER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Interest in a Joint Venture (continueq) 9

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered

REELENER

BT HBERHRARAAASER
SEEBIE——MAELE TR

material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of BRHAEERBEKR - AEEHEZE
this joint venture is as follows: EhEZHBERDT ¢
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAxT
Loss from continuing operations SIEL BB 1R (5,712) (5,509)
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 EUA (1,952) 883
Total comprehensive income FHERALEE (7,664) (4,626)
. E7d
Trade and Other Receivables 10, EZ REMEWRKIE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —=—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAxT
Trade receivables, net B 5 W IE R EE 12,278,152 10,833,758
Other receivables and prepayments H e W B R TR B 2,166,713 1,776,376
Deferred expenses PEIERT S 9,212 11,156
14,454,077 12,621,290
Less: Non-current deferred expenses A IEARERIRER (3,065) (5,145)
14,451,012 12,616,145
muexpraRan —z— ) \F4x 141
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10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date

100 EG R EMEWRIE G-

AEBRTE=ZSTEPZ2EEHNT7
E150R  r MBEEPZEEMATRT
FERAEBEZXZE RN RLEIT
R -BZREFAFEREZAHED

is as follows: ZEREBROMMT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
0 - 30 days 0%30H 6,138,015 5,643,681
31 - 60 days 31260H 3,186,088 3,212,853
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,082,758 800,841
Over 90 days B0 H 1,871,291 1,176,383
12,278,152 10,833,758
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

. £ -
10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 10.EZRHEMERRE =
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated B REMBRFEREREN T EE
in the following currencies: FHE -
2018 2017
(Note)
—E-N\F —T—tF
(HiaE)
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
HK$ BT 125,115 131,576
RMB AR 9,727,403 9,111,869
USs$ ET 1,891,199 1,042,986
S$ N T 740,634 550,164
THB B 1,203,157 989,749
RP ENfef& 763,504 789,801
14,451,012 12,616,145
As at 31 December 2018, included in other receivables and RZE—NF+_A=+—H s AH
prepayments is an amount of HK$252,883,000 (2017: HK$229,707,000) ftb P& U 3} 3B R FE 1 5 I 252,883,000
representing investments in unlisted securities measured at fair value BaO(ZF — 4+ F:229,707,000 8
(2017: at cost) and investments in listed securities of HK$68,094,000 L) BRAFEFEZIELTESFKR
(2017: HK$133,324,000) measured at fair value (2017: at fair value) B(ZEE—+LF : IBEKA) RIZ A FEET
(see note 3.3iii)). B2 EMBEHFRE(ZZ—tF: &R
F{E) 68,094,000 L (=ZF — £ F -
133,324,000/ 7T ) ( R M 5E3.3(iii)) °
Except for the listed and unlisted securities, the trade and other BEMRIFELTHESIN  BEHREME
receivables were measured at amortised cost during the year. WHRTERF NIREER A E o
Inventories M.78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Inventories on hand held for re-sale FEHEEFEFE 5,446,059 3,909,090
Inventories-in-transit EEREE 656,971 354,609
6,103,030 4,263,699

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

is shown in note 21.

BRARRAXZFESBZ DTSR M T
21 ¢
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12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

12BERBEEEY

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRS 1,506,024 1,979,365
Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) RHESR TR (AT i (@) 2,036 1,682
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 1,508,060 1,981,047

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated

AehkReSEWREENLTIEE

in the following currencies: (=
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T

HKS BT 56,478 59,037

RMB (Note (b)) AR (HteEb) 1,022,530 1,405,698

us$ ETT 286,839 345,649

S$ N TT 88,513 110,951

THB K 47,642 10,084

RP EEE 6,058 49,628

1,508,060 1,981,047

Notes: K& -

(a) The effective interest rates on short-term bank deposits (@) EHRERAGRZEEENX AN T
were between 0.1% and 0.35% (2017: between 0.1% and 01%ZE035% (= ZE—+%: N F
0.835%) per annum. 0.1%%0.35%) °

(b) The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in
RMB are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion (b) NEBUARBABEZHRTE®R LT

of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to
prevailing rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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13. Share Capital 13. R4
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Authorised: VERE
2,000,000,000 (2017: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000% (=& —+4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0000% ) &% 1A
01 B L2 EBK 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EBRTERBREBR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREE1ETZ BREECABTZ
ERTEBRHA HE BRETLEREE HE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER THET
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 1,459,863,998 145,986  1,454,403,998 145,440
Share options exercised
(Note (a)) AT 2 BRI E (Wit (a) 4,900,000 490 5,780,000 578
Repurchase of own shares
(Note (b)) BRIAF R (K b)) (6,900,000) (690) (320,000) (32)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,457,863,998 145,786  1,459,863,998 145,986
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13 Share Capltal (continued)

Notes:

(@

146 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 4,900,000
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$10,415,000
of which HK$490,000 was credited to share capital and HK$15,322,000
(including HK$5,397,000 transferred from the capital reserve to the share

13. 2 )

Hiat

(a)

RIRE R B BITRG

FABERERE TELMEFH%
10,415,000 & 7t R B X & A
4,900,0008 L @Ak - E71490,000%
et ABRA » M15,322,0005% T 8 &

premium account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in ARmaEE - &% 81E5,397,000%
note 2.17(d)) were credited to the share premium account. TLERBHFE21700)FT#E 2 g5 BR
HERFEBRZERMNEER -
Number of
Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued  Consideration share capital premium reserve
BREBREGARTROZAH BOZ2EBERYE CE FARAE 1R 175 8 BERfRE
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
March 2018 1,180,000 2,489,000 118,000 3,657,000 1,286,000
April 2018 1,800,000 3,660,000 180,000 5,330,000 1,860,000
May 2018 1,440,000 3,207,000 144,000 4,751,000 1,688,000
October 2018 :T NE+A 480,000 1,069,000 48,000 1,584,000 563,000
4,900,000 10,415,000 490,000 15,322,000 5,397,000
During the year ended 31 December 2017, options were exercised BE_Z-ttF+-_A=+—H
to subscribe for 5,780,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a lt FE OB REESTRENRRK
consideration of HK$12,725,000 of which HK$578,000 was credited B 12,725, 000 /% TTREARA
to share capital and HK$18,288,000 (including HK$6,14 1,000 transferred 5,780,0005 fig - Hd1578,000/%
from the capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance TTRFARBAE - ﬁﬁ 18,288,000% 7T Al &+
with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were credited to the AR ERR - & B3E6,141,000/8
share premium account. TERBWE2A7)FA#E 2 E5TBR

MENFRERERMEER -

Number of
Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued  Consideration share capital premium reserve
BREBRESARTRAZAH BTz EBARME RE BN R EE BEXGE
HK$ HK$ HK$S HK$
BT BT BT BT
March 2017 240,000 534,000 24,000 791,000 281,000
May 2017 240,000 534,000 24,000 791,000 281,000
October 2017 S ! 2,620,000 5,776,000 262,000 8,263,000 2,749,000
November 2017 ZT—tF+-A 2,040,000 4,456,000 204,000 6,421,000 2,169,000
December 2017 B | 640,000 1,425,000 64,000 2,022,000 661,000
5,780,000 12,725,000 578,000 18,288,000 6,141,000
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13. Share Capl’[al (continued) 13. 1% Z'K (#)
(b)  Repurchase of own shares (b) MEREIAXNHRGH
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company repurchased RBE-ZET-N\F+ZA=+—H1
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FE - RARARIRERZPAEDRDAER SR
BT -
Number of

ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate

shares price paid price paid purchase

Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid

BEZ A% BRE2EERYE SHERESER ENfSRBEEERX ENEABEER

HK$ HK$ HK$

April 2018 —E-N\FNA 406,000 3.86 3.84 1,564,000

July 2018 —ZE—N\FtA 274,000 3.80 3.80 1,041,000

September 2018 —ZE-N\FNA 628,000 3.74 3.73 2,345,000

October 2018 —T—N\%+A 2,254,000 3.82 3.61 8,523,000

November 2018 —=2—-N\F+—A 630,000 3.80 3.78 2,387,000

December 2018 —E-N\F+=A 2,708,000 3.80 3.63 10,047,000

6,900,000 25,907,000
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased RBE-FT—tF+=-A=+—HL
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FE - ARARREZPAEDRDAER SR

MW -
Number of

ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate

shares price paid price paid purchase

Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid

BEZ A% BREZEERYE SHERESEK EANfSREEERX ENEABEER

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT T

August 2017 —T—tFNA 320,000 2.20 2.16 698,800
The repurchased shares during the years ended 31 December 2018 and RBEZZE-N\FRZIF—tF+=
2017 were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the A=+—BLEEZEBLORHGE R
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. o A ARAE 2B BEITRAE MK

ZERPZEE -
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13 Share Capltal (continued)

()

148 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Deferred shares

The Company acquired, through a trust setup specifically for purpose of
employment compensation, a total of 4,222,000 ordinary shares of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 3,356,000)
from the open market for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$15,838,000 (2017: HK$9,569,000). These shares would be used
primarily for providing employment/executive compensation of the Group.
The costs of acquisition of shares were recognised in the “Deferred
reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

During the year, 1,000,000 (2017: 10,718,000) deferred shares with a
total value of approximately HK$2,500,000 (2017: HK$27,924,000) were
vested and transferred to all eligible employees.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the
reporting period

13. RZA (&)

(c)

i JE AR 19
REE-_ZE—-—NF+_A=+—HL
FE -ARABZBEFINRERBBE
MBEZEERAAMBLEBEAG R
4,222,000 (=Z — 4 : 3,356,000
BIAQREBER  REREBELEY
%15,838,0008 (=% — £ F :
9,569,000 L) - ZERMBEEH
REEANEEZER THREE - K
BROZEKARGEEZZEDHRE[E
TEFEEIRNER

FERNEEL2,500,0008T(ZF—+
F 27,924,000 78) 2 1,000,0000%
—F— 4+ :10,718,0000% ) I& iE B
9 EFRBUYHEETHESEKESR -

R EBRARE B RARITE 2 B R
£

No. of options No. of options

outstanding at
31 December

outstanding at
31 December

2018 2017

R-ZE-N\F R-ZB—tF

Exercise price =~ +T=A=+—-H +=B=+—H

Exercise period TEH IEE RITHEBIRE RITEERE

17 February 2013 to T -_fFt++HE-T-— HK$2.227 3,360,000 5,760,000

16 February 2021 FZA+~H

23 March 2013 to —E-=F=A-+=HEF-F— HK$2.028 1,680,000 4,180,000

22 March 2021 —F=A=+=H

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@)

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the new share option scheme may
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The vesting period of the options from the date of
grant is determined by the Directors and the options are then
exercisable within a period of ten years including the vesting
period, if any. Each share option gives the holders the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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14. LMQ@SEﬁZ#E mE

EE]

(a)

BEERERARLE

NN e ]

KRRRZZTETEFWOA+ A
o ZWZEEHXTE FrElE&Em e
PiIN/N —E-RFAAZtT=
Ei%M*Iiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’i%ﬂ%ﬂ(r%ﬁﬂ
g1 Bl ARREFERE
HEBREREE(BEZBLERE
BURAITES) « FHTES -
HED TEPRAASEEREMHES
BEZEMRAGHBEINALT(ERR
Bl ERT R ) EABRE -
REARB 2D o RIBEFER
%ﬁ?ﬂ&ﬁjﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ&z
BEaROHBETSBARARA
BEATIRAR 210% ° wﬁﬁf“EEZK
AEEgET  UBETLR T
ZERE WARrAEEKR A
B:(WVRELHBBEBIRELZ
BHBREXRMAIARAERRK 2
”&mf‘i RiREZZHBE R
AREEXAMIAEL S HRK
BERMAIAQAEBR 2T
mE - BELD B BB ERE
EEIARESFET  BREAR
HEeTFHEATE(RREREEH
(InE)) - BHERERTIHEA
BANREARARA—REBRKR -
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continvegs 14. AR B X 2R FE

=+
MIE )
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continuea) (a) AnAIERERE (2
No share options were granted under the New Scheme during REEZ_E—t+tERZZE—N\F
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018. +-—AZ+—BHLEE  BMER

A IR h A o

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) MUTARHZIERKEIEH
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bl REE-_Z—N\F+
shares for the year ended 31 December 2018: —“A=+—RIEE B

BREADNED RN &
&
Outstanding Outstanding  Exercisable —E - NERNETEZER
as at Exercised as at as at Contractual Remaining
1 January during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting temof  contractual
2018 the year 2018 2018 price conditions options life
(HKS)
R=B-N§ RZB-NF
R=8-N§- TZR=t+- tZR=+- ERE bl
B-REAfE  RERTE  AEAGTE  BIFOE e BRER 2HES EHEH
Date of grant RHAH (#7m)
23 March 2011 “E——EZf-1=H 4,180,000 (2,500,000) 1,680,000 1,680,000 2.028 2 years from 10 years 2.23 years
date of grant
BRHAAE 10§ 2235
2%
17 February 2011 “5-—%-RttA 5760000 (2400000 3,360,000 3,360,000 2221 2 years from 10years 214 years
date of grant
AELASRE 10§ 2145
bipk3

9,940,000 (4,900,000) 5,040,000 5,040,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise ERITERBZINETFHR
for share options exercised during 2018 was HK$4.05. BAR4.05%8T °
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments continuesy  14. L,L BoOXHzEREE

FIE (@)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continuea) (a) AAAIERERE (2
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) #H - FIEHEREHANER
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of RITEOEE - U T REL
shares for the year ended 31 December 2017: NG B A&
Qutstanding Ouistanding ~ Exercisable
asat Lapsed Exercised asat asat Contractual Remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting term of contractual
2017 the year the year 2017 2017 price conditions options life
(HKS)
RIE-tE RITtF
WZT—t5- tZR=t- fZAst- Bl il
Date of grant RiAH R-BRAfR  RERXH  RERGR  BEAGR  BAFAR e SEA ANEH Gl
(%7)
23 March 2011 “Z-—FZf-1ZH 4,920,000 - (740,000) 4,180,000 4,180,000 2028 2 Years from 10 Years 3.23 Years
date of grant
BELARE 105 3.23F
HoF
17 February 2011 —F——F-f++R 11,760,000 (960,000) (5,040,000) 5,760,000 5,760,000 2221 2 Years from 10 Years 3.14 Years
date of grant
BRLARE 105 3145
ioE

16,680,000 (960,000 (5,780,000) 9,940,000 9,940,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise ZE—tHFRNETHECER
for share options exercised during 2017 was HK$2.14. ERITERBZIMEFEHR
BA21487TT -
15. Reserves of the Company 15. KD AR E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEBGEERSEXNSD 2FVRE
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the REBRZEHEFNGEEREHRE -
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Detalils of the changes in KAMERIERAEX D E AT RBEF
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning EZFYRFREF ZFBEAINNOT :

and the end of the current and prior years are set out below:
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15. Reserves of the Company (continued) 15. XA B

Retained
Capital earnings/
Share  redemption Capital Deferred (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve loss) Total
RERAN/
ROEE BRBERE BRGE EERE (RTER) b
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TiET TET TET FiET TEx TEx
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Hit) (Ht) (Ht) (Ht)
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F-A—-Hy
began 835,465 7,212 18,870 (76,741) 124,914 909,720
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZARALE
income for the year - - - - (6,380) (6,380)
Dividend paid ENRE - - - - (180,406) (180,406)
Deferred share purchased EREELERN - - - (9,569) - (9,569)
Vesting of deferred shares ERRHER - - - 27,924 - 27,924
Share options exercised BT RE 18,288 - (6,141) - - 12,147
Share options lapsed BARM BRE - - (1,125) - 1,125 -
Repurchase of own shares BEAFRR
~ Premium paid -BfEE - - - - (667) (667)
— Transfer between reserves 1P - 32 - - (32) -
Balance as at 31 December 2017 ~ R-ZE—+F+-F=+
—BziH 853,753 7,244 11,604 (58,386) (61,446) 752,769
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-\F—A—HYZ
Lt 853,753 7,44 11,604 (58,386)  (61,446) 752,769
Loss and total comprehensive FNEERZERALE
income for the year - - - - (2,863) (2,863)
Dividend paid BRE - - - - (215,190) (215,190)
Deferred share purchased BREEERN - - - (12,022) - (12,022)
Vesting of deferred shares ERBRHE = = = 2,500 = 2,500
Share options exercised BRTEERE 15,322 = (5,397) = = 9,925
Repurchase of own shares BEAG KA
- Premium paid -BfEE - - - - (25,217) (25,217)
- Transfer between reserves e - 690 - - (690) =
Balance as at 31 December 2018 ~ WZZE—\E+-A=+
—Az#H% 869,075 7,934 6,207 (67,908) (305,406) 509,902
Note: Wiz
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature EHHBEZHEEREN  BREAEZEY

and purpose of reserves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

v =h

16. Trade and Other Payables 16. ES RHEMEARE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F T L5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Trade payables S EMNRIE 10,141,865 7,910,341
Other payables and accruals H b FE AT R IE R FERT R IE 753,596 1,077,936
Deferred income (Note (d)) IR A (Kfat(d) = 13,327
10,895,461 9,001,604
Less: non-current deferred income T IEARERIRIE A = (6,821)
10,895,461 8,994,783

(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to (a)
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables

by invoice date is as follows:

AEEBZHERRAAEERTE 2
ZEHNTFI0E90H - BFENR
REREZAHE D Z2ER SN

s
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
0 - 60 days 0&60H 9,994,267 7,812,862
Over 60 days HBiE60H 147,598 97,479
10,141,865 7,910,341
(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were by BHREMENHERDBENLT
denominated in the following currencies: H|EEEEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
HK$ BT 54,698 32,140
RMB AR 6,605,953 5,164,281
US$ T 2,992,337 2,574,845
S$ AN T 311,619 295,868
THB Zbk 393,498 326,510
RP e & 537,356 601,139
10,895,461 8,994,783
(¢) Included in other payables and accruals is a net amount (c) EMENREREGFKRES
HK$170,157,000 (2017: HK$104,910,000) which relates to EEBEERBNIESEDZ FE
forward foreign exchange contracts. The net notional amount 170,157,000 L (= F — £ F ¢
of forward foreign exchange contracts has been disclosed in 104,910,000 70) < R EIINE &
note 3.1(a). W2 FRREERWFEI ()
= .
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

16. Trade and Other Payables (ontinueq)

(d) As a result of adoption of HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018,
fees received in advances from maintenance services contracts
(previously reported as “deferred income”) are reported as

As at 31 December 2018, current and

non-current contract liabilities amounted to HK$6,400,000 and

“contract liabilities”.

HK$4,065,000, respectively.

(e)  Included in other payables and accruals is an entrusted loan from
an associate of HK$241,991,000 (2017: HK$268,800,000). The
loan from an associate is denominated in RMB and is unsecured,

interest-free and repayable within one year.

17. Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method.

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

16. €5

d)

Hia B RIE )

—E-NF-A—HEH
B mEEREI55R 0 AL
REAHKENER(AE
ABIELEWAZ2RAEIEH
cHRZE-—N\F+=ZA=+
’ ﬁfiﬁlﬁ;EMLEUc1#TE1E D
| 6,400,000/ JT & 4,065,000

BIT ©

x

Jh‘?ﬁi’ﬁ%

| m o 7= oH B

FID IR S o SR

b 3]

(e) EHMmENMKRIEKEGRE
FﬁHﬁ%**/‘*hMZ%%‘%;%x

241,991,000 c(=—ZF —+
268,800,000 71 ) ° .&%Eﬁ*tﬁ
pERNAREZEIAARES
B AEEE 2EERR—FR

BIE o

i 3E Bi T8

EREHEDREAMARESELEES
BitE -

EXERBEE/ (BFE)FE2EHM0

T

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH&xT T

At 1 January n—A—H 52,965 33,466
Credited to the consolidated statement FFAGRAEBEE (M F23)

of profit or loss (Note 23) 26,777 17.294

Exchange difference PE 3 Z%E (2,673) 2,205

At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 77,069 52,965

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

BERBREENABRENREFAZE

year are as follows: ZZHT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—tF
Deferred tax assets — Inventories and trade EEREEE-GFERESE HK$’000 HK$'000
receivables provisions WA R E FET T
At 1 January »w—HA—H 88,867 66,689

Credited to the consolidated statement of profit st A4E &8

or loss 22,589 19,651
Exchange difference PE N Z=%E (3,827) 2,527
At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 107,629 88,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

17. Deferred Taxation (ontinued) 17 EERE )
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
Deferred tax liabilities — Accelerated tax FEHIEE RS - MEFHBERE HK$’000 HK$’'000
depreciation and others REHAM FH&T FHET
At 1 January n—H—H (35,902) (33,223)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement =t A/ (31%) BiES8EBHER
of profit or loss 4,188 (2,357)
Exchange difference PEH ZFE 1,154 (322)
At 31 December W+—_A=1+—H (30,560) (35,902)
Included in “others” are deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect [Hpy | BERPEIINEDCEZRD K E
of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in the PRC F R 2 R IE B I8 8 (521,022,000 7T
of HK$21,022,000 (2017: HK$23,562,000). —ZT—+4 23,562,000 7T) °
H s
18. Borrowings 18. 6 &
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHT
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EILRRITEE (a) 1,454,589 -
Finance lease liabilities BMEAHEAR (©) 449 642
1,455,038 642
Current B
Unsecured bank borrowings EINMIRITEE (@) 6,289,401 6,595,493
Secured mortgage loan BEMIZBER (o) 36,450 45,894
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAE (c) 523 531
6,326,374 6,641,918
Total borrowings BEeE (d) 7,781,412 6,642,560
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18. Borrowings (continuea)

Notes:

(@)

156 vsTteC

Unsecured bank borrowings

Asat 31 December 2018, non-current unsecured loans of HK$940,631,000
and HK$513,958,000 were repayable on 29 July 2021 and 9 September
2021 respectively. The loans were unsecured and bore interest at rates
as disclosed in section (e) below.

Mt -

(a)

18. 6 E =

mEWRITEE
R-_ZE—-—NEFE+-_A=+—8"
940,631,000 Tt & 513,958,000 %
TN EBEBFEREDINR T
——FtAZtThBHEZZE=—FAN
ANAEE ZSEXRAEEMRIRE
TX(e)fi B2 FEFE -

Secured mortgage loan (b) HBERKBER
The loan is secured by buildings with net book value of HK$186,881,000 RZE-—NFE+_A=+—8 B
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$191,092,000). The loan contains a LABR®E ¥ 18 &£ 186,881,000 (=
repayment on demand clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid T — £ F:191,092,000%8 t) 2 &
after one year of HK$27,006,000 (2017: HK$36,450,000) is classified FRER ZEEFRBEERE
as current. BER MER—FEREEEZEX
#27,006,0008 L(ZF —+F :
36,450,000 L) DR AEVER -
Finance lease liabilities (c) BMEMEEARE
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset HRENSHEEE2EFERED
revert to the lessor in the event of default. A MEEEEEREER -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHERERE
— minimum lease payments: —REEERE :
Within 1 year —FR 615 631
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF 524 758
1,139 1,389
Future finance charges on finance leases MEMEZRRBESH (167) (216)
972 1,173
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEHERGBEZRENT -
is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 523 531
Between 1 and 5 years —EZRF 449 642
972 1,173
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

. I+ .
18. Borrowings (continued) 18. 6 &
Notes: (continued) Biat - (%)
(d)  The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: (d) FAEBZEEERTIHEER
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total
RITHE MEHEEE M
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

BN\ T tF ZEB-N\F T tF ZEBE-N\FE _T—tF
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
THExT F#T THEx F#T THEx F#&T

Within 1 year —FR 6,325,851 6,641,387 523 531 6,326,374 6,641,918
Between 1 and 2 years —E2-F - - 265 420 265 420
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 1,454,589 - 184 222 1,454,773 222
7,780,440 6,641,387 972 1,173 7,781,412 6,642,560
(e)  The effective interest rates were as follows: (e) EBEMELMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+t5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FH&T
Unsecured bank borrowings MIERRITEE 1.60%-10.45% 1.60%-11.50%
Secured mortgage loan EEFRBER 1.46%-3.11% 1.68%-2.02%
Finance lease liabilities MEHEERE 3.60%-4.99% 3.60%-4.99%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values. BECEOSEHEEQATERS -

0} The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the () EEZEESEUTIESHE

following currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHExT FET

HK$ BT 359,471 481,394
RMB AR 2,943,815 2,476,380
uss$ E 3,576,912 3,189,497
S$ T 332,945 101,806
THB Tk 375,840 305,928
RP I 192,429 87,555
7,781,412 6,642,560
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19. Revenue and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as

19. & K

7 &b &

DHEHNDERRBREALEE &S BTH
EIEABRAEDBRIR LN EBE D
RERMABER -—BzhAGRH - K&
BrERaBETHREBAERESS - 5t
s - $EIZEF?ﬁ*ﬁAE
BUTERERZARESOHEEZE
i

Wit R SR EE S BELE LW
EREREDBELLAXSRELSD
% -

BEDBENAAZFAETERDHE
B BREERNSMERIEEZER - F

directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs

within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

the year is set out below.

(@)

158 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

Segments

Pl

MEZHH  ZEEMESREMBD A
THER -

FAREERERD B RO A RBF M
Rzl dE D BEMEN T -

(a) %ﬁ&/-\_L
REBZFEEXEBHHHBWOT :

Principal activities

EREK

Components products

B2 dn

Mobility digital devices

Bk

Cloud and big data

analytics

EHE R KRBT

Network and data
security

WERER

Provision of IT component products (CPUs and hard disks) and provision of supply
chain solutions for the Original Equipment Manufacturer.

REEAMBEMER(PREERZLER) MARREREMEHIEEBRTR

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,
drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

REEEABEERER(BEETRNER - F#  MARE 2
o BRI -

BEBE)F % - 3DITED

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

REAREAREERREZ CERFTAPBME - BIERL - Uni/NTIRTSES ~ BUR
[ R (17 ) B B R RHR AR R b R ET R ENTT - A - BIERIERT -

Provision of network security hardware and software required for big data and cloud
computing.

REXBBELREAEMR PR T 2B LB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq)

(@)

Business segments (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2018

19. = KD EBE R =)

(a) FEHBD I
BE-_T—\&+-A=+—8

=1

are as follows: EFEZDHEENT ¢
Mobility Cloud and
Components digital big data Network and
products devices analytics data security Total
(Note)
EHER WER

RHER BERE  KHBOW FER2 Eok ]

(fiz)

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TERT TET TER TET

Total segment revenue DR E 11,286,966 26,113,765 16,279,457 8,801,773 62,481,961
Segment results DEEE 439,205 277,207 206,266 220,598 1,143,276
Finance costs H%ER (240,405)
902,871

Share of associates’ profits DEBEREEF 49,840
Share of a joint venture’s loss ~ AMEAECEFE (5,712)
Profit before taxation BRAE A& 946,999
Taxation i (206,172)
Profit for the year FRHH 740,827
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 3,859,100 7,936,477 4,773,421 2,584,380 19,153,378
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19. Revenue and Segment Information (continuec)

19. = KD EBE R =)

(@) Business segments (continued) (a) EXK DI
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEz_FT—tHF+=-HA=+—H
are as follows: IEFEZHHEENT
Mobility Cloud and
Components digital big data  Network and
products devices analytics  data security Total
(Note)
EiER BER
et Em BEE  REEAT ERRE g
(Hizt)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TERL TERT
Total segment revenue AEELE 13,242,819 22,357,439 10,557,511 8,385,315 54,543,084
Segment results DEEE 426,339 289,900 210,925 154,389 1,081,553
Finance costs NBER (204,861)
876,692
Share of associates’ profits AIEBEREEF 48,528
Share of a joint venture’s loss A 1EA &£ EE (5,509)
Profit before taxation BRACADA A 919,711
Taxation 1B (203,270)
Profit for the year FRER 716,441
Reportable segment assets AHRENHEE 3,927,783 6,523,110 3,025,891 2,376,892 15,853,676
Note: Hrat -

All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are substantially from

sale of goods.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative method.
Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was

prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.

160 VSTECS Holdings Limited
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i < YNy -3 ' g
19. Revenue and Segment Information continueq) 19. s & 2 2B & &)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss (b) AIKETHIERREERN
iz
and assets ¥} BR
Profit S A
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the HROH&FEBEEEBEERME
consolidated statement of profit or loss is not presented as the A2 FEWmAMER - W2
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year presented DEENEGEERERERAZIERA
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. AN e ERR o
Assets BE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment assets ARG D BB E 19,153,378 15,853,676
Goodwill EE 319,979 322,995
Interests in associates R E QR ER 896,881 868,238
Interest in a joint venture REEhENER 36,180 43,844
Deferred tax assets IEEFRIEE & 107,629 88,867
Other receivables and prepayments E b FEUGRIA K TR 5RIE 1,855,354 1,494,685
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 1,508,060 1,981,047
Consolidated total assets A MEE 23,877,461 20,653,352
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- 3 Te A 2RE WL
19. Revenue and Segment Information (continueq 19. &z koBER @
(c) Geographical information (c) HEEHR
The Group’s four business segments operate principally in North REBEMEXHB»HBEENILD
Asia and South East Asia. LEEEEE -
2018 2017
(Note)
—E-N\F —F—tF
(HiaE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Revenue Uk
North Asia it 49,379,022 43,999,522
South East Asia W 13,102,939 10,543,562
Total segment revenue DS 4 EE 62,481,961 54,543,084
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WHRBEEFPAEBRRSE
is located.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
Assets BE
North Asia it 15,390,835 12,713,782
South East Asia g 3,762,543 3,139,894
Reportable segment assets AR EDIPEE 19,153,378 15,853,676

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the AREDREERBEEMTH
assets are located. SE o

Note: Hraz -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative method. REFOHBERE LI NERE SN
Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was FEIMEREB|I L5 - BIEZ T E
prepared in accordance with HKAS 18. BANTTENTERIEE S E

BIE18E FIARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

20. Other Gains, Net 20. Hb W A F 58
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest income F B U A 9,071 15,637
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE Y% - BB L& 2 EE (779) (1,031)
Net exchange (loss)/gain BN (&), e FeE (1,675) 2,803
Other Htb 6,911 802
13,528 18,211
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21. Operating Profit 01 4R 4 3% F
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: AR TR S (SFA) A T & IE %
S

2018 2017
=B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Cost of inventories FERAR 59,671,694 52,196,047
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BETRA(BREEEMNE)
- Salaries, allowances and welfare — & - EBINER 702,360 594,319
— Provident fund contributions —NTEEHZ 98,964 82,307
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises MEREE 2EEHERS
and warehouses 90,417 62,202
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
— audit fees —EZER 5,321 6,613
— non-audit fees —JEEZEA 1,319 2,508
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - REMBREBITE 35,253 28,624
Net provision of Inventories (note) FEREFEN L) 8,954 77,565
Net provision of trade receivables B S RUGRIBRE T 162,918 107,749
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) [E 518 (Was ) 548
— excluding net exchange loss/(gain) in other — B IRE M EE 7 ME
losses B8 (Was ) F5E 69,256 (98,166)
Note: B st -
Inventories provisions, which is included in cost of inventories, were resulted REBRBAFEZFERB(EBRIERRFE
from a decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain inventories in KAR)EREBE THEFEN G #IRFE/RD

the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Finance Costs 22. M &M
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FAxT
Interest expense on: THEEZAERE
- Bank overdrafts —RITEX 23 34
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EIRRRITEE 239,379 204,035
- Secured mortgage loan —BHREIRBER 893 696
— Finance lease liabilities —-MEHEAR 110 96
240,405 204,861
Taxation 23. B8
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RgEBaRNB 2 HIEBESLERE
profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAxT
Current taxation REARR IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFEH 11,115 67,109
— Taxation outside Hong Kong —BABRINBIR 225,577 155,265
Over-provision of taxation outside Hong Kong in @7 FEE & EIINIIE
prior years TBREREE (3,743) (1,810)
Deferred taxation (Note 17) EERETE (Kat17) (26,777) (17,294)
206,172 203,270

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated at
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

—E-N\EEFANEGHEBE_F—
NF+ZA=+—HILFEZMHFE
R M LA E16.6% (ZF —+4F ¢
16.5%) 7R BHE -

—z—n&5% 165
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23.

24.

166 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Taxation (continued)

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

23. Bi1E =)

5 5 DA 51 4 T 0 2 70 A 5 3 R 1
AEEETERGEREERELEY
BEHE -

ERRNARURFEZIERER-F
ENF-A-HERBRBRZENAEEZ
BB KBNS % 2 FRIR T

AEEBRBAEN 2 HBRERTER
FRELZHERSBIERNT ¢

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAxT
Profit before taxation B A 946,999 919,711
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%:1E 156,255 151,752
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRABBRLEERTRRE 2
jurisdictions % 23,116 33,621
Income not subject to taxation AR WA (1,416) (9,447)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BIE M S NS 2 B 17,792 19,498
Over-provision in prior years B FERERE (3,743) (1,810)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised st R ERTRIEEE 2 FHEE
2 11,548 6,774
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of the TERRETFEMB AR R
PRC subsidiaries k=2 2,620 2,882
Taxation charge MBI 206,172 203,270

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

The loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$2,863,000 (2017: loss of
HK$6,380,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

25. Dividends 25. R E
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FABGZENEQTE
Company attributable to the year mEFEEARE
2018 2017
—R-\F  —TtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT T
Final dividend proposed after the end of the A ¥R Bi K 7% # K R HA IR
reporting period of approximately HK15.2 BEKREBKRL15.258
cents (2017: approximately HK14.7 cents) W(==F—+tF : 9147
per ordinary share B 222,000 215,000

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period R E H R % B IR AR A% B I &
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting RNBEHRERABE -
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) E—BHFEEEMIERE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, ALERIRS Z2EBFERAD
approved and paid during the year AEEEEARE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous BE—UREERFER
financial year, approved and paid during HefE BORA 2 REBRR B
the year of HK14.7 cents (2017: HK12.4 B% A 14.7 B A
cents) per ordinary share (ZZE—+F 1248

i) 215,190 180,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

26. Earnings Per Share 26. B R EF
Basic HAR
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based FRERERABIZARAERITEA
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company JEAE % F740,827,0008 T (—ZF —+
of HK$740,827,000 (2017: HK$716,441,000) and the weighted F :716,441,00080) RE#ETKH
average of 1,435,283,000 shares (2017: 1,423,259,000 shares) Z hniEF 9 E1,435,283,0008% (==
in issue. —+4F :1,423,259,000/ )5t & -
2018 2017
—E-N\E T+
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—RZBETLER
(thousands) (FR%) 1,459,864 1,454,404
Exercise of share options (thousands) 1T (T AR 3,243 1,153
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BB A & B (FAR) (1,206) (109)
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) EERR () 2 T2 (FIR) (26,618) (32,189)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as R+ A=+—H Z @I
at 31 December (thousands) 8 (TFR) 1,435,283 1,423,259
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) GRERZF (FRAENL) 51.62 50.34
Diluted g
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based FRNERBERANERRAREZFEA
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of &5 % #740,827,0008 T (— & —+
HK$740,827,000 (2017: HK$716,441,000) and the weighted average 716,441,000 ) M {9 2 0 #E
number of shares of 1,437,654,000 (2017: 1,425,671,000 shares), SE801,437,654,0000% ( —ZF —H4F ¢
calculated as follows: 1,425,671,0000% )5t &M -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ A=+—RETEBKR
as at 31 December (thousands) INEFEHE(TRR) 1,435,283 1,423,259
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share R B A R v B (T
options (thousands) A%) 2,371 2,412
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+t A=+—RH#82
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) AR e g (FAR) 1,437,654 1,425,671
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share)  SR%EE & | (G REL) 51.53 50.25
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 27. EERSREEENE
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEBE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENHENARAEZES 2
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: e @zEmT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAxT
Fees we 768 699
Other emoluments HAn
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EAE e RERER 12,217 11,305
— Discretionary bonus —EIEIEAL 6,278 8,153
— Contributions to pension scheme — RS2 412 271
19,675 20,428
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEEMNS
Emoluments (continueq) ()
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EFBE 2
The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31 SEEFHE-_Z-N\F+=ZA=
December 2018 is set out below: T—HIEFEZMEeHINOT
Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEXHER Eihe
EEpg e EEZE BigfA BE L ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 2,800 18 8,018
Zhou Yibing A& - 2,161 - 90 2,251
Chow Ying Chi FurE 43 1,179 2,389 178 3,789
Ong Wei Hiam, William TEN 125 2,503 634 18 3,280
Li Yue ES7] - 548 455 18 1,021
Liu Ningdong =R - 626 - 90 716
Non-executive Director FpTES
Liang Xin 2R 120 - - - 120

Independent Non-executive B JF¥i{TE =

Directors

Lam Hin Chi EBD 120 - - - 120
Li Wei FiR 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAER 120 = = - 120
Wang Xiaolong THeRE 120 - = = 120

768 12,217 6,278 412 19,675
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 21 EERENEEEMN=
Emoluments (continued) (%)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EFEME @
The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31 EEEHE-_Z—tF+=-RA=
December 2017 is set out below: +—HIEFEZHMESHI BT :
Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
BEXF &R BRE
BENE itk FE2E BfETEAT Bl G k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT FHT
Executive Directors HiTES
Li Jialin EXE - 5,200 2,800 18 8,018
Chow Ying Chi FmE - 1,181 2,430 181 3,792
Ong Wei Hiam, William &M 99 2,470 710 18 3,297
Chan Hoi Chau BRa M - 786 1,470 18 2,274
Li Yue ESE - 538 365 18 921
Yao Jie #EA - 1,130 378 18 1,526
Non-executive Director FHTES
Liang Xin 2 120 - - - 120

Independent Non-executive B IFHITES

Directors
Lam Hin Chi ] 120 - - - 120
Li Wei e 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAER 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong T 120 - - - 120
699 11,305 8,153 271 20,428
Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately EFXBEEEMEBEXNT
HK$480,000 (2017: 480,000) paid to Independent Non- B IEMITE F 249480,000/8 T
executive Directors. (ZZ—+t%F :480,0008T) °
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an REFMEBEFEBRERZEA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation TEXAEEME  EARIIKSE
for loss of office during the current and prior years. MAAXREE X BEENMARNE B &
2 RESE R E -
During the current and prior years, no Director of the Company RERMRBEFE r AAAIES
waived any emoluments. W ENEWREEAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 21 EERENEEEMN=
Emoluments continueq) ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EEmREHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEBEFAREZHEESALE
Group for the year included two (2017: three) Directors whose EME(ZE—+F: ZR)ES -
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. BEZHMEER EXE2I 29
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2017: two) FRE - FAXNTFES®#=ZR(Z
individuals during the year are as follows: T—tF:-MBIATZHEWT:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Fees e - -
Basic salaries and allowances BEXR% e KOER/ 4,455 2,484
Discretionary bonuses BB TELL 9,724 5,862
Contributions to pension schemes RIREEHEIE R 101 248
14,280 8,594
The emoluments fell within the following bands: M &R

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band < & E 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T — 4,000,0007 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T — 5,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ ¢ — 6,000,000/ 7T 1 -
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28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. &SRS REHR KM=

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) BRBLAIEASEELE TS
generated from operations EFEZHE
2018 2017
—E-N\f§ —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FTET FHET
Profit before taxation KR 54 i A 946,999 919,711
Interest income FESA (9,071) (15,637)
Interest expense FERY 240,405 204,861
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BEREREBITE 35,253 28,624
Share of associates’ profits DMEBE RN B EF (49,840) (48,528)
Share of a joint venture’s loss DEEELEEE 5,712 5,509
Loss on disposal of property, plant and TEME  BEMREZEE
equipment 779 1,031
Operating profit before working capital changes BEBCHEA 2 LERF 1,170,237 1,095,571
Changes in working capital BB
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMEWREIA (1,839,331) (3,401,596)
Inventories FE (1,832,787) (555,409)
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ENFIE 1,904,322 896,857
Net cash used in operations e gy B Ry ee ) (597,559) (1,964,577)
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28. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. % & B € RE M KR M &

174 vSTECS Holdings Limited

(continued) (#&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing by MEZTHMEEEGEZYH
activities iR
Borrowings Borrowings
e BE
(Note 18) (Note 18)
(BizF18) (Hfzt18)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHT
At 1 January W—A—H 6,642,560 4,245 041
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELE
Proceeds from new bank loans ILIRITE AT IA 17,009,531 24,596,184
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (15,866,692) (22,338,113)
Interest paid BERFE (240,405) (204,861)
Total changes from financing cash flows MEREREL LT 902,434 2,053,210
Other changes: Hitt# g :
Interest expense FEFHX 240,405 204,861
Exchange adjustments 0 3 F (3,987) 139,448
Total other changes Hin@s)ag 236,418 344,309
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 7,781,412 6,642,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

29. Commitments

(@)

29, & IE

Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—
to make capital contributions of HK$146,616,000 (2017: H A&EEEMETRELHAE
HK$175,293,000) to certain investments. 146,616,000 T(=ZF —tF :
175,293,000/8 7T ) 2 & -
Commitments under operating leases (b) BREHET 2&IE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZE—-—NF+=_A=+—8"
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating AREBEBREIMAHELEHEE
leases as follows: ZBEZEEENFTBEOT
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Within 1 year —FR 66,573 44,141
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF 86,666 19,260
After 5 years hig 12,196 -
165,435 63,401
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of premises and AEEBAZEBRBELEHERA
warehouses held under operating leases. The leases typically ZUMEREREZAEA HEZ
run for an initial period of one to three years, with an option to MEFH—RE—ZEZ=F  RE
renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. MEENHSTEEERTEN
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. EEmAEGER HMEEEEFEX
muERrERERLE -2 )\F#45% 175



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B I ER R PTAE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@

176 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2017: HK$200,000).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2017: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co., a
company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of HK$14,000
in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License to Kong
Lung Ind Co. (2017: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$55,539,000
during the year (2017: HK$56,962,000).
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31. Statement of Financial Position of the

31. XA T

) Z B B AR R &

Company
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\FT+ZHA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —ET—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T F#ET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEEG 2,476 953
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z’E 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,117,637 2,116,114
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries S NG ) 126,270 126,270
Prepayments AR IE 104 303
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRESZEEY 13,591 34,630
139,965 161,203
Total assets MmEE 2,257,602 2,277,317
EQUITY s
Share capital i&N 13 145,786 145,986
Reserves s 15 509,902 752,769
Total equity HmRER 655,688 898,755
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary B — B AR FIE 1,601,914 1,378,473
Other payables and accruals ET&IEHMIE&E#MIE = 89
Total liabilities weE 1,601,914 1,378,562
Total equity and liabilities Bz BERAE 2,257,602 2,277,317
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 1,461,949 1,217,359
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 655,688 898,755
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 EFEeRE-hAEF=-AZ+BHtHE
March 2019. R RETE -
Li Jialin Chow Ying Chi
Z{EM PR
Director Director
o o
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. . " -
32. Comparative Figures 32. Lk B F
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January AEBERZZE—NF—A—HEXRE
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information HEBYBEREENFZIOR BB K
is not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting policies WMEEAE1S - REBEMEEZBE
are disclosed in note 2.2. o AEEIINRER - @5t BEE

ZE—HFBERM T2 2R WE -

33. Possible Impact of Amendments, New BEE-FE-NEL_H
Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not =+t BLEECHEM
Yet Effective for the year ended 31 December Bt AR L ZIEE] -
2018 EARREIETFRZ

By &8
e —
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, BEEAGEVERRTIELH  HE
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards BHMASEEMREBEE_T—\F+
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended ZA=ZT-RALEEERMAREREL KRR
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these R e M BRERKA 2 ZIEEE] « %
consolidated financial statements. These include the following which AlR#E  BEUATAREAREEE#H
may be relevant to the Group. E
Effective for accounting periods RT3 B sk z %
beginning on or after 5 16 2 & 5T B R A
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019 EABBRELERE 16 ZE-NF-A-8
% HE
HK(FRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income 1 January 2019 EE(ARMBERERES “E2-NE-A-H
tax treatments 8€)%23%  BEHA
BHEELAZTHY
A%
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2019 2015 — 201 7B EBMF S “E-NF-A-H
2015-2017 Cycle BRELUNFEYE
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long- 1 January 2019 AReEAF 28 (5] ZE-NF-A-H
term interest in associates and joint ) REZATREE
ventures PEZREER
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33. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not
Yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
201 8 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impact
upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standard is
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ending 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the standard is
initially applied in that financial report.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach
for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the comparative information.
As disclosed in note 29(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amount to HK$98,862,000 for properties and other assets which is
payable either between 1 and 5 years or after 5 years. Upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and
the corresponding right-of-use assets will be recognised after taking
account the effects of discounting as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets,
the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon
the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as described above
could have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from 2019 onwards.

33.

BE-FE-—-N\FE+=A8
=tT-HLEFEECHEM
BEARERZIER] ~ #
ﬁg&ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬂz
=410

AEBEBREFBEZEER - FELY RZ
BREXERUEZBANTE - A% H
S EBANBEAM B RS ENF165%
ZETHHEARYGERMBHRRENY
2 FUHBHMZE2E-—TFBERTX
Wit c BEAKRBECARTRE EFEH
B EERE 165 27 M - HERZER
BEXFRAKZERZEMAERN - RA
RESTRZFEDERAEEBAIA
BHERET  MRZENERELRE
BEHEE_ZT-NAFRA=THLAXER
ZHHMBRERAA K GE - FER
HEE - AKBIRAIRERZENER
EZMBHRESRBANELRE &5t
BR(BEBENR) °

AEFEFEREABTEMBRELEF
165 EMEEBCENE - TEKERE
RZRATERAR/RY _T—NE—A
—HZENREZAEHR AR A TEE
LR E R o B M 29(b) TR EE -
RZBE-NF+ZRA=+—H F*%
ERATAREZEEHET ZARRE
&K %98,862,0008 7T - A F &
DARBREAER " EZERFAIEFHEX
- BERRAT B EREERE165%
% HEABERNAEREAEEENF
B RERITEAER R T —
NE—-—RA—BH¥ER -

GHRANEAERERBEEI - A%
EEAERARRBEMBREENFE16
BRETFHNBEABKETBERX -
AR - EREABRRZERESH NG Y
AEFBE T NFRZUMBHRREK
EATE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEE=R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for AEBBERBAFREE 2 EBUREER

the last five financial years is set out below: BEHREHIN DT
Results &

Years ended 31 December

BE+T=-RA=+—-BLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —E—+tF —E-REF —E-hF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FHAT FTHET THET
Revenue Iz 62,481,961 54,543,084 48,161,318 45,575,640 41,892,709
Profit before taxation BR & A i 946,999 919,711 688,775 561,998 769,029
Taxation I8 (206,172) (203,270) (136,860) (111,617 (143,361)
Profit for the year FRHEHM 740,827 716,441 551,915 450,381 625,668
Attributable to: AT AT
Equity Shareholders of the 2 Al E A

Company 740,827 716,441 551,915 450,381 607,374
Non-controlling interests R EE - - - - 18,294
740,827 716,441 551,915 450,381 625,668

Assets and Liabilities EEREE

As at 31 December
R+=A=+-8H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —E—+tF —E-RE —T-hfF —T—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT FTHAT FTHET THET
Total assets BEE 23,877,461 20,653,352 16,293,051 16,768,378 13,129,424
Total liabilities BafkE (18,830,739) (15,818,638) (12,429,413) (12,949,271) (9,136,466)
Total equity @iEs 5,046,722 4,834,714 3,863,638 3,819,107 3,992,958

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 Z#A&EBER-_ZTZ—N\F—A—HEXERSE
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, HBHBREERFIRRBEEVBRSEASE

comparative information is not restated. 1655 c IRBAERZBEE  TEFINLKR
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